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Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

Dear VIl shareholders,

2006 saw the continual evolution of the Group into a diversified
investment holding company and there will be more exciting
developments that will hold great growth potential for us in the
months to come.

While TopAsia Computer Limited and its subsidiaries ["TopAsia
Group”) remains the core business anchor, it is the Group's
intention and goal to seek further diversification to minimize its
risk exposure and most importantly, to broaden its income base.
Although our latest investments in the real estate-related
businesses through Acacia Asia Partners Limited ("Acacia’) and
Grand Panorama Limited ("Grand Panorama”) have encountered
some difficulties as a result of the unanticipated regulatory
changes, your directors remain cautiously optimistic of the
overall growth momentum in China’s real estate sector. We
believe that growth is the only way forward for China as a whole.
This presents tremendous opportunities for us as the two sectors
most likely to benefit from a country’s growth are the banking
and real estate sectors.

Tse Michael Nam /¥
Chairman F /&

B RR -

FERBRE_ZTRNFHBERREE BTHAR
—KEBZITHREERQF - EEERRA
BT ¥BERSEERER MATARRA
5

BEEZTEANF NAREEETERLOES-
EEPESRKEL TN ERER —HAERK
KERk MEEEEM EHESEMNRAE
T o 5 @ 31 F 3% 1B 1% & Acacia Asia Partners &
Grand Panorama ' R B EMRBER REH
RAEABRIMERNBERLEmMB E—FER#E &
BESTEEMETEREMIGERE N KA
REELE UWAGTELERRDG TE %
Be—EBREREREH RITKEHMETE
NAZE B EMRTEBBRERNEHK-

Venture International Investment Holdings Limited ZEBEBKREZERBR DT



Chairman’s Statement
FERE

We are also very excited by the prospect of providing
management and consultancy services for the cultivation of
licorice roots in Inner Mongolia. We believe that there are huge
market potentials for the licorice root business. Licorice roots
is an important Chinese medicine and a sought-after health
product ingredient worldwide.

This new venture is in line with the Group’s mission moving
forward - to be the best in the field of converting natural
resources to commercial resources whilst preserving and
sustaining land for continuous and future use; to become
indispensable to Governments in achieving their national policies
to sustain land and natural resources; and to be part of world
efforts in the conservation of the environment for the greater
good of mankind.

We will continue to embrace changes and relish new challenges
and to turn them into opportunities for the Group. We would
like to take this opportunity to thank you all for your staunch
support.

Tse Michael Nam
Chairman
Hong Kong, 13 April, 2007
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB WD

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group reported a turnover of HK$58,740,000 from its
ordinary business in 2006, representing a decrease of 54%
compared with its turnover from continuing operations
HK$128,884,000 in 2005. The drop in turnover was largely due
to a decrease in the sales of hardware equipment. Loss from its
operating business narrowed by 6% to HK$11,633,000 from an
operating loss from continuing operations of HK$12,406,000 in
2005 as a result of improved profit margin.

Gross profit increased 42% from HK$8,894,000 in 2005 to
HK$12,671,000 as a result of improved gross profit margin to
22% from 7% in 2005 because of an increase in sales from the
maintenance services and real estate consultancy service
businesses.

The Group reported a gain of HK$9,290,000 from partial disposal
of ChinaCast Communications Holdings Ltd ("ChinaCast").

Loss per share was HK2 cents, compared with HK7 cents per
share in 2005.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2006 (2005: Nil).

REVIEW OF CORE BUSINESSES

2006 was a year of transformation for the Group which changed
its name to Venture International Investment Holdings Limited
to reflect its new identity as a diversified investment holding
company.

While the legacy business of providing automatic teller machines
("ATMs”) maintenance service through TopAsia Computer Limited
and its subsidiaries ["TopAsia Group”) remains the core business
stream, the Group now holds investments in Acacia Asia Partners
Limited ("Acacia”), a provider of computer technology services
primarily to the real estate consultancy service businesses in
Shanghai, and Grand Panorama, a real estate consulting agency
in Shanghai.

As a newly transformed investment holding company, the Group
continued to look for opportunities to diversify its interests into
areas with high commercial viability. Subsequently, after the
close of the 2006 financial year, the Group entered into a Sale
and Purchase Agreement to purchase the entire issued capital
of an investment holding company that holds a contract to
provide management and consultancy services for the cultivation
of licorice roots in a piece of grassland in Inner Mongolia.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE B AT

LEGACY CORE BUSINESS - ATM MAINTENANCE SERVICE AND
IT SOLUTIONS: TOPASIA GROUP

TopAsia Group, which carries on the Group's legacy business of
providing ATM repair and maintenance services to the banking
and financial sectors in the PRC, continues to remain a core
operation and revenue base in 2006. TopAsia Group reported a
20% increase in ATM after-sales services for the year.

TopAsia Group made great strides in customer and market
development during the year. Most notable is TopAsia Group's
successful bid for Bank of China’s ("BOC's”) Yunnan branch open
tender. The tender was for the provision of after-sales repair
and maintenance service for all of BOC's Yunnan branch ATMs
which were previously served by two or more service providers.
This was a spectacular win for TopAsia Group, a true attestation
of its capability and has helped TopAsia Group further
strengthened its presence in the southwestern region of China.

TopAsia Group has also become one of the leading ATM services
providers to the Bank of Communications in 2006. From 12 after-
sale services contracts with the bank’s city branches in 2005,
the number increased to 29, which represented almost one-
third of the bank’s total branches of approximately 80.

Besides making great strides in customer and market
development, TopAsia Group has also achieved great
geographical extension of its business across the huge nation
of China during the year in review. In Zhejiang, the number of
ATMs under its service more than doubled from less than 200 a
year ago to over 400. The company also managed to break into
a new market in the northwestern Gansu Province with more
than 100 ATMs now under its service. Initial inroads were also
made in the Qinghai Province.

In respect of marketing and sales of self-service equipment to
financial institutions, TopAsia Group maintained its leading
position with new contracts clinched with Zhejiang Postal
Bureau, Bank of Shanghai, China Merchants Bank's ("CMB")
branches in Shenzhen, Beijing, Xining and Shenyang, Bank of
Commerce’s branches in Taizhou, Lanzhou and Hangzhou, and
Huishang Bank, etc. Increased sales to CMB represented a
significant growth driver, and TopAsia Group also succeeded in
sustaining its agent and service provider status with CMB in its
latest tender.

In addition to the ATM sales and after-sales services business,
TopAsia Group continued to develop and market storage facilities
to banks and securities enterprises with the world’'s leading
manufacturer EMC. The division was most encouraged by new
orders from the Industrial Bank’'s head office and Shanghai
Securities Central Clearing and Registration Corporation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B DA

TopAsia Group also cooperated with IBM and Symantec to
develop information management and system security software
business. Software application development contracts were
signed with Bank of Shanghai and Shanghai Anxin Agricultural
Insurance Co. Ltd.

REAL ESTATE-RELATED TECHNOLOGY SERVICES: ACACIA
Acacia is a provider of IT management, online and support
services including Internet portal and data management
services, to real estate agencies in China, primarily Shanghai.
Acacia’s business development activities were adversely affected
by the Chinese Government’s policy changes and the imposition
of austerity measures to regulate and cool off its seemingly
overheated real estate market.

The ban on foreign individuals from investing in the retail
residential market, the imposition of capital gains tax and the
lowering of the mortgage ceiling to not more than 70%, were a
few of the changes which had the most impact on the real estate
agency market. For December 2006 alone, transaction volume
was down by 20% compared to the same time a year ago.

Real estate agencies which cater predominantly to the middle
and luxury sectors of the market were the worst hit. A number
of them opted to leave the stricken industry. Unfortunately, these
agencies were the target customers for Acacia’s web-based real
estate data management platforms.

To cope with the unfavorable market environment, Acacia
downsized its staff strength and curbed its capital investment
to minimize operational cost in the interim. However, the Group
remains confident of the long term potential of China’s real
estate market.

REAL ESTATE CONSULTANCY SERVICES: GRAND PANORAMA
In February 2006, the Group announced the acquisition of the
entire share capital of Grand Panorama, a real estate
consultancy agency in Shanghai, for HK$30 million. Like Acacia,
the division was affected by the latest real estate policy changes
in China and failed to meet its guaranteed profit for the year
ended December 2006.

However, the Group remains optimistic of the future of the office
sector business in Shanghai and Beijing in which Grand
Panorama specializes. This area of the real estate business is
less speculative and more stable.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE B AT

NEW INVESTMENT: AGRICULTURAL PROJECT

In February 2007, the Group entered into a Sale and Purchase
Agreement to purchase the entire issued capital of Huge Value
Development Ltd. ("Huge Value”), an investment holding
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Huge Value
has entered into a contract with Inner Mongolia Tian Lan
Technology Sand Control Estate Limited ("Tian Lan”] to provide
management and consultancy services to the latter for the
cultivation of licorice roots in a piece of grassland of the size of
1 million mu, in Inner Mongolia. The management contract is
for 47 years.

Upon the completion of the sale and purchase transaction, Huge
Value will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. It's
financial results will be consolidated with the Group.

Licorice root is an important Chinese medicine and it can be
used as raw materials for producing food, candies, cosmetics,
health products, fire prevention products and construction.
Licorice is a native perennial plant of certain regions in China,
mainly the Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region. The area in
which Huge Value is contracted to manage is located at the
main growing centre of licorice in China.

The supply and quality of licorice roots from China have been
decreasing in the recent years as a result of lack of management
of the land in which licorice grows. The demand is however on
the increase. This gap in demand and supply will gradually lead
to an increase in the price for licorice.

The Group believes that there is a huge market potential for the
licorice business in and out of China.

OUTLOOK

The Group’s new identity as a diversified investment holding
company continued to take shape in 2006, following the
completion of various asset restructuring exercises. The strategy
is to maintain TopAsia Group as the stable income contributor
while injecting new investments into the Group as and when the
opportunities come along, as additional growth drivers and for
prudent risk dilution.

TopAsia Group anticipates huge growth potential in China for
the sales of self-service facilities and the provision of after-
sales services in the years ahead. This is because financial and
banking institutions are forced to remain geared to improve their
competitiveness, cost efficiency and service quality in the face
of increasing challenges from the gradual opening of China’s
financial market to foreign banks. Furthermore, given China’s
fast economic development and accelerated transformation of
its urban and rural areas, the financial industry is poised for
tremendous growth in the coming years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B DA

It has been 20 years since the launch of the first ATM in China.
There is an estimated 120,000 ATMs, including automatic
withdrawal and deposit machines, currently in operation. Relative
to China’s population and average disposable income per capita,
the ratio remains extremely low compared to the more developed
countries. Although this means tremendous business potential
for automated and non-cash transactions, it will take time for
the people, system and infrastructure in China to be able to
cope with the transformation from traditional cash-based
consumption pattern.

TopAsia Group is not the only one to have identified this market
niche, however it has been able to strengthen its leadership
over the years through its first-mover advantage, team
professionalism, superior geographical coverage, extensive
brand portfolio and strong management prowess. Industry
competition will only become increasingly fierce with pricing
and service quality gaining greater importance as two key factors
to business success. TopAsia Group is fully aware of the
challenges from falling prices and the emergence of more
competitors, but will continue to capitalize on its core strengths
to achieve better results in 2007.

Specifically, TopAsia Group will aim at raising profitability
through stronger management, tighter cost control and robust
business development. It will further expand its customer base
and market coverage for the provision of repair and maintenance
services to self-service facilities. Business development activities
will be targeted at loyal customers such as BOC, Bank of
Communications and CMB. At the same time, it will also explore
opportunities with major banks such as the Bank of
Construction, Agricultural Bank of China and other regional
commercial banks. The goal is to achieve a 5% year-on-year
increase in the volume of repair and maintenance services.

In respect of marketing and sales of self-service facilities,
TopAsia Group aims to achieve a year-on-year growth of 20%
through the provision of top-notch services and the cultivation
of quality customer relationship. Targeted customers are CMB,
regional commercial banks and postal bureaus.

In addition to the ATM business, TopAsia Group will continue to
cooperate with EMC and Equal Logic to market storage
equipment and contingency back-up systems of all specifications
to financial and securities enterprises, and government
authorities. It will also strengthen its cooperation with IBM and
Symantec to develop new customers for new contracts in
software application. More resources will also be devoted to
foster supplier relationships, and develop new businesses,
partners, and products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE B AT

Internally, TopAsia Group will seek to re-affirm its 1SO9000
corporate management certification through strict controls on
organizational structure, staff number and operating procedures
to ensure that optimum management standards and operational
capabilities are always in place.

In respect of the Group’s real estate related technology and
consultancy businesses of Acacia and Grand Panorama, the
management is in favor of a more cautious approach for the
time being in view of the latest drastic policy changes in China.
However, the Group remains confident of the long-term
development potential of the real estate market and the provision
of real estate-related services in China.

The Group expects to commence the operation of its new
agricultural project in Inner Mongolia in April. Through Huge
Value, the Group will assist the local company to formulate plans
for the proper and efficient cultivation of licorice. The supply of
licorice roots in China has been on the decline both in quantity
and quality in recent years as a result of lack of or improper
cultivation. The proper cultivation of licorice will ensure that
the supply and quality of licorice roots will increase in future
and more importantly, lead to land preservation and anti-
desertification through control of soil erosion and movement.
As this is in line with the Government’'s national policy and
interest, the Group has their full backing and support. The Group
believes that through these efforts, it will gain significant
recognition and support and access to further land management
contracts and other lucrative business opportunities, hence
creating greater shareholder value.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

NET ASSETS

As at 31 December 2006, the Group recorded total assets of
approximately HK$239,399,000 which were financed by liabilities
of approximately HK$68,407,000 and equity of approximately
HK$170,992,000. The Group’s net asset value as at 31 December
2006 increased by 10% to approximately HK$170,992,000 as
compared to approximately HK$155,309,000 as at 31 December
2005.

LIQUIDITY

The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$72,254,000 as at 31 December 2006 (2005: approximately
HK$52,312,000). After deducting bank loans and overdrafts of
approximately HK$18,000 (2005: approximately HK$626,000), the
Group recorded a net cash balance of approximately
HK$72,236,000 as compared to that of approximately
HK$51,686,000 as at 31 December 2005. As at 31 December
2006, the current ratio was 3 (2005: 2.04) and the gearing ratio
was nil (2005: 0.01) which was defined as the Group's interest-
bearing bank loans and finance lease payables over its total
equity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B DA

CHARGES ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2006, fixed deposits of approximately
HK$15,624,000 (2005: HK$139,000) were pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated resources and credit facilities provided by banks in
Hong Kong. There was no borrowings outstanding as at 31
December 2006. Borrowing methods used by the Group mainly
include trust receipt loans, overdrafts and term loans. The
interest rates of most of these are fixed by reference to the
Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate. Both bank deposits and
borrowings are mainly in Hong Kong dollars and United States
dollars ("US dollars”).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2006, the Company had no contingent liabilities
in relation to guarantees given to banks in connection with
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries (2005: HK$20,000,000).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in US dollars
and Renminbi. Foreign exchange exposure of the Group is
minimal as long as the policy of the Government of HKSAR to
link the Hong Kong dollars to the US dollars remains in effect.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2006, the Group employed approximately
290 full time staff in the Mainland China and Hong Kong. The
Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
work experience and the prevailing market price. Performance
related bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other
employee benefits include mandatory provident fund, insurance
and medical coverage, training programs and share option
scheme.
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Corporate Information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE

Mr. Tse Michael Nam (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

(appointed on 12 February 2007)

Mr. Chan Tze Ngon

Mr. Wu Emmy (resigned on 10 October 2006)

Mr. Tang Kin Hung (Deputy Chairman]
(retired on 26 May 2006, appointed on 10 October 2006
and resigned on 1 March 2007)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

Mr. Lo Siew Kiong, John O.B.E., JP
(resigned on 23 June 2006)

Mr. Tai Benedict
(appointed on 23 June 2006)

Mr. Fu Yan Yan

Ms. Wang Xi Ling

Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John
(appointed on 12 February 2007)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Chan Shui Kuen

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT
Ms. Ng Jenna Bee Ching

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Room 3101 31st Floor

118 Connaught Road West

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Bank of China (Hong Kong)
2A Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

SOLICITORS
Michael Li & Co
14/F Printing House
6 Duddell Street
Central

Hong Kong
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AUDITORS

Lawrence CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants
3/F., Hong Kong Trade Centre
161-167, Des Voeux Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

The Bank of Bermuda Limited

Bank of Bermuda Building

6 Front Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tengis Limited

26/F., Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITES
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Management’s Profile
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tse Michael Nam, aged 50, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Tse has had over 20 years of experience in the agricultural,
cultivation and farming industry. Mr. Tse has held key
management positions in several agricultural companies as well
as being a technical advisor to various organisations and
governmental bureaus such as Hawaiian Agronomic
(International] Inc., Thai Trade Commission and Guangdong
Agricultural Burean. Mr. Tse holds a bachelor degree in
Biological Science & Marine Biology from University of California,
Berkeley and a Master Degree in Business Administration from
University of San Fancisco. Ms. Tse is responsible for the Group’s

overall performance and strategic direction.

Mr. Chan Tze Ngon, aged 51, is an executive director. Mr. Chan
founded the Group in November 1993 and has responsibility for
the performance and operation of certain of the Group’s
subsidiaries. He holds master’'s degrees in mathematics and
computer science from Concordia University, Canada. Before
founding the Group, Mr. Chan has more than 19 years of
experience working with multi-national IT vendors, where he

had held senior management positions.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tai Benedict, aged 51, is an independent non-executive
director. Mr. Tai is a founding partner of a boutique merchant
bank in Hong Kong. He has over 20 years’ experience in the
field of corporate finance and currently focuses on the real
estate, industrial, consumer and healthcare sectors. He received
his education in the United States of America and holds a Juris
Doctor degree and has participated in many leading Merger and
Acquisition transactions in the United States and the Asia-pacific
region.

Mr. Fu Yan Yan, aged 57, is an independent non-executive
director of the Group. After graduating from the University of
Electronic Science and Technology of China, he joined the
Ministry of Electronic Industry of China and participated in the
strategic development and project management of
communications and computing products in the country. He later
founded two advanced technology companies in Hong Kong with
a wide range of operations in computer technologies, office
automation systems, medical equipments and pharmaceutical
research and production. One of them was listed in Canada in
1992. He was previously the general manager in charge of the
China operations of a leading IT services company in Asia Pacific
and has over 22 years of China-focused experience in the IT

industry.
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Management's Profile
BEEABRBIT

Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John, aged 45, is an independent non-
executive director. Mr. Lim has extensive private equity
investment experience having managed several private equity
funds covering primarily the ASEAN region since 1991. Prior to
that, he worked in Dowell Schlumberger in the United Kingdom
and Arthur Andersen & Co, London. Mr. Lim graduated with a
Bachelor's Degree in Economies from the London School of
Economics and Political Science in the United Kingdom. He is a
qualified chartered accountant from the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

Ms. Wang Xi Ling, aged 50, is an independent non-executive
director. Ms. Wang is a member of CICPA. She has been involved
in the audit of TianQiao Department Store Co., Ltd. (Beijing
TianQiao BeiDa Jade Bird Sci-Tech Co., Ltd.), the first Initial
Public Offer in Beijing and the Initial Public Offer of JiNan QingQi
Motorcycle Co., Ltd. Ms. Wang was also appointed by Beijing
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
for the internal audit of Beijing Mass Transit Railway (Group)
Co., Ltd. and Beijing YiQing Holding Co., Ltd. Ms. Wang has over
14 years’ experience in audit and accounting. She was also the
founder of an accountancy firm with an extensive customer base.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chu Lik Chung, aged 56, assumes overall management
responsibility for the Group’s banking and financial peripheral
product offering and servicing network in China. He is a graduate
of the Eastern China Normal University, Shanghai with a diploma
in Chinese language and literature. He has more than 15 years
of IT experience and joined the Group in June 2000.

Mr. Li Yiu Wai, aged 42, assumes the overall management
responsibility of the Group’'s IT service arms for real estate
agencies. He is a graduate of the University of Hong Kong. He
has more than 15 years of experience in the real estate agency
sector. His unique IT expertise and real restate agency
experience led him to found Acacia in 2005.

Mr. Zheng Jia Jing, aged 30, is in charge of Shanghai Conity,
the Group’s professional property agency business in Shanghai.
He joined Shanghai Bonity Property Group in 2003. In 2006,
Shanghai Bonity was merged with the Group to form Shanghai
Conity. Mr. Zheng has over 10 years' experience in property
agency business and is a registered property agent in Shanghai.

Ms. Ng Jenna Bee Ching, aged 39, is the Group's qualified
accountant. She is a member of CPA Australia and has been in
the accounting and corporate finance arena for more than 15
years. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Ng has held various
management positions with companies spanning Singapore,
Hong Kong and Australia.

Ms. Chan Shui Kuen, aged 37, is the Group’s company secretary.
She is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Ms. Chan holds
a Master degree of Professional Accounting from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and has over 15 years of experience in
audit and accounting fields.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2006.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
During the year, the Group was involved in the distribution of
computer hardware and software products and the provision of
computer technology services and provision of property agency
consultancy services. Details of the principal activities of the
Group's principal subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the

financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's
principal activities during the year and up to the date of this
report.

RESULTS

The Group’'s results for the year ended 31 December 2006 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 31 to 96.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published consolidated results
and the assets, liabilities and minority interests of the Group,
prepared on the basis set out in the note below. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

E=gWE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) BEERBSE (&)
RESULTS 24

Year ended 31 December

BE+-AZ+-ALEFE

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
“EEXE CZETRE ZETWE ZTE=F —FTT-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
TURNOVER EEH
Continuing operations REKEEHB 58,740 128,884 237,841 261,692 188,784
Discontinued operation ERIEER - 96,224 - - 155,084
58,740 225,108 237,841 261,692 343,868
LOSS BEFORE TAX BREAEE
Continuing operations REKEEDB (11,633) (12,406) (29,755) (15,734) (35,317)
Discontinued operation ERILER - (27,110) - - (99,863)
(11,633) (39,516) (29,755) (15,734) (135,180)
Tax A 1,642 1,673 (175) 1,974 (4,065)
LOSS BEFORE RADPHRRER
MINORITY INTERESTS A& R (9,991) (37,843) (29,930) (13,760) (139,245)
Minority interests DERRER - 2,171 3,077 (1,622) (8,624)
NET LOSS FROM RRELEBEER
ORDINARY ACTIVITIES ZEREBB
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS (9,991) (35,672 (26,853) (15,382) (147,869)
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED]
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS

MBENBE (@)
EE-BERIBRRES

31 December

+=B=+—H
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
—EEXRF —TTREF —TTME —EE=F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS E(FRBEE 48,880 106,388 86,924 90,257 58,761
CURRENT ASSETS HBEE 190,519 96,480 238,526 281,019 264,275
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE 68,407 47,349 (189,819) (205,835) (143,632)
NET CURRENT ASSETS FBEERE 122,112 49,131 48,707 75,184 120,643
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEAER

CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE 170,992 155,519 135,431 165,441 179,404
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES #REBEE - 210 (487) (737) (953)
MINORITY INTERESTS PERRER - - (4,454) (7,531) (5,909)
170,992 155,309 130,690 157,173 172,542

FIXED ASSETS BEE&EE

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor, are
set out in notes 27 and 28 to the financial statements,
respectively.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 34, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2006, the Company had no retained profits
available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s
contributed surplus of HK$39,431,000 is undistributable. The
Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$342,547,000 at 31 December 2006, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’'s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for approximately 36% of the Group’s total
sales for the year.

Purchases from the Group’'s five largest suppliers accounted for
93% of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to 26% of the Group's
total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest

customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Tse Michael Nam  [Chairman and Chief Executive Officer]

(appointed on 12 February 2007)

Mr. Chan Tze Ngon
Mr. Wu Emmy
Mr. Tang Kin Hung

(resigned on 10 October 2006)
(Deputy Chairman)
(retired on 26 May 2006,
appointed on 10 October 2006, and
resigned on 1 March 2007)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Lo Siew Kiong, (resigned on 23 June 2006)
John, O.B.E., J.P.

Mr. Tai Benedict (appointed on 23 June 2006)

Mr. Fu Yan Yan

Ms. Wang Xi Ling

Mr. Lim Yew Kong, John [appointed on 12 February 2007)

In accordance with bye-law 111 of the Company’s bye-laws and
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules (the "Listing Rules”]) Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”), Mr. Chan Tze Ngon and Mr. Fu
Yan Yan will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and of the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 13 to 14
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, no
director had a material beneficial interest, either direct or
indirect, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set
out in note 35 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2006, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFQ"]], as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the

“Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
Company:

EEREN kR

BREF ISR M 3SR E SN B EREARA
S EEFMERARRFRTLEHAREEER
BEAFEZANT REEEAREEAES

e

e
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EERTHRAINKRG HEARORE
ZZRBBERKAE

REZBEEXRF+T_A=+—H ARAEFERIT
BEBENARBREAEEZE (ERREHFR
HEGRY ([EHREEEERM]) EXVE) 2K
AR REST BEEARARREZES R
HEEPIEEAFE 2B TMARLE HR
BETRAERETESFRSMEESTR (12
EFHND EMERRRAIRBRAZEEIAR
R

RARR LB NBBERN 2R

Number of issued ordinary

shares and underlying shares

Capacity
52

of HK$0.10 each

in the Company held

Personal interests
BFEAXALAESREEIETT
ERTEERREBRG ZHE

Percentage of
holding

8 A #E 22 FERESL

Director:

EF:

Beneficial owner

BEmEBA

Mr. Chan Tze Ngon
RFBEE

125,542,000 18.60%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS EERTHATRAKRG HEARMORE
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING #ZRZRKRAE (&)
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)
No. of No. of
Name of Directors Nature of interest underlying Shares share options Position
EEnS EaHE HERGEE BRESHE BA
Mr. Tai Benedict (note) Beneficial owner 600,000 600,000 Long
B E A (M EE) EmEEAA HE
Mr. Fu Yan Yan (note) Beneficial owner 600,000 600,000 Long
RN A (MHEE) EmEB A 5]
Ms. Wang Xi Ling (note) Beneficial owner 600,000 600,000 Long
THBLZT (HiE) E=EEA HE
Note: These options were granted under the share option scheme  MizE: b MEARHE TR IR AN 1 A) BT BR 4% B AR =1 21
adopted by the Company and entitle the holders thereof to R W TEFEARMNZERKMD0.15%
subscribe for Shares at an exercise price of HK$0.15 per Share. TTZITEERERG -
In addition to the above as at 31 December 2006, certain R-ZEXF+_A=Z+—HB BLiEIN B
directors have non-beneficial personal equity interests in certain  FARAARIBMEABZBE EFEERAR
subsidiaries held for the benefit of the Company solely for the RIFBETHEBRAIZEBZBEARNEZ-

purpose of complying with the minimum company membership
requirements.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or the chief
executive of the Company had registered an interest or short
position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any
director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Concerning the share options granted during the year to the
directors and employees as detailed in note 28 to the financial
statements, the directors do not consider it appropriate to
disclose a theoretical value of the options granted because in
the absence of a readily available market value of the share
options on the ordinary shares of the Company, the directors
were unable to arrive at an accurate assessment of the value of
the share options.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

Other than the directors and chief executive of the Company,
whose interests are set out in the section “Directors” and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, no other person had registered
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company that was required to be recorded in the register
of interests pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

(ii) Interests in shares of associated corporations of the

Company

Name of subsidiary Name of entity

MELARER mEEE HE
TVH Cyber Technology Ltd. Yi Jun Yong
ZEHBRXAR QA 283

BMC Software (China) Ltd. BMC Software (HK]

Ltd.

L: represents the entity’s interests in the securities

BRESE

R BHMRM T8 FRERAFARTEER
BREZERENS ARHELERBAARE
BERCBRETERSE EFERERZFER
BZEEFLERGE REETRS L TEE
BREEREZEREE-

FERRREMALTRRO REEBER
HZEBERKXE

BRARBEERITHRARR EXTEERTR
BERNRD HERO REF 2 EERXR] —
ENFr R s BEE R A TR AR R Z B
HEBRD T HEAAREES MME RS
B G HEAERET LMz ERIAE -

i) RAQFAEBEEZERG 2 EDS

Class and no. Percentage
of securities shareholdings
REEREE REBDL
200 ordinary shares of 20%
HK$1 each (L)
2008 T RR (B
BTz BB
1 ordinary share
of HK$1 (L) 10%
TR EE

BTz BB

L RREBREF 2T
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware
of, as at 31 December 2006, no other party (other than the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company] had an
interest or short positions in the shares, the underlying shares
or debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section 336

of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Details of corporate governance are set out in the section headed
“Report of Corporate Governance” in this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 12 June 1999,
which comprises three independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Tai Benedict, Mr. Fu Yan Yan and Ms. Wang Xi Ling
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
audit committee meets regularly mainly to consider the nature
and scope of audit reviews, the effectiveness of the Group's
financial reporting process and internal control systems, and

compliance with the relevant rules and regulations.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Lawrence CPA Limited retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Tse Michael Nam

Chairman

Hong Kong
13 April 2007
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Report of Corporate Governance
EERERWE

The Group remains committed to maintain a good standard of
corporate governance and the Board considers the maintenance
of effective corporate governance practices an essential factor
for the Group’s ongoing success and in enhancing shareholders’
value.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company has adopted the mandatory provisions of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”] under appendix
14 of the Listing Rules. In the opinion of the Board, the Company
has complied with the Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2006. The Board will continue to review and monitor
its practices from time to time to ensure compliance with the
Code as well as to maintain and improve on them.

The Corporate governance practices adopted by the Group are
summarized below:

(a) Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuer (the "Model Code") in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules has been adopted as the code on directors’
securities transaction for the Company. After having
made specific enquiry with all the Directors, each of them
confirms that he/she has complied in full with the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2006.

(b) Board of Directors
During the year in review, the Board was composed of
six members comprising the Chairman, Deputy Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ”) and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. As at the date of this report,
the board comprises two Executive Directors and four
Independent Non-executive Directors. Their biographical
details are set out on pages 13 to 14 of the Annual Report.

The Board is mainly responsible for overseeing the
management of the business affairs, the overall strategic
planning and development and reviewing financial and
internal control systems and financial performance of
the Group. Each Director has access to and had been
given timely information for consideration of the
businesses of the Group.

AEE-BERNMGF2KFZEEERFE M
EFERR EBEMERERRRIIAKER
BRI ERREABRREEZEZRAR-

EERERERATA
ARBEHRMETRBNME AL EERTERT
AL(TFRD) 20 BGEFR-EFERE ARA
REZE-ZEXRF+_A=1T—-HIFEFE—&
BrTR - EEEREEEHRTIREREE
1 SATEGR B <7 <7 A LA R M 15 S B <7 B

REBARMOEERFTRBAMT

al EBZBHXRE

ARBERM ETRAKMEI0LETRA
EFETESFRHINFRESTR (TEESF
B ERARRERTETESFRSZ
STR-KRAE2RBESFHARSHR &
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St BLFE-—EX2EETHREST
Ao
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Board of Directors (continued)
The attendance of each of the Directors is set out in the
following -

(b)

=g (&)
BEFEZHEXRMT:

No. of meetings attended/held

(c)

HEBITERRH

Audit Remuneration
Directors Board Committee Committee
BE EEg EREES" FHMEES
Executive Directors
HITES
Chan Tze Ngon (Chairman] 40/40 - -
BRFB(EE)
Wu Emmy (Deputy Chairman] 30/40 2/2 11
R (BIEE)
Tang Kin Hung (Chief Executive Officer) 21/40 - 11
Bt (T AR
Independent Non-executive Directors
BIAFHTES
Lo Siew Kiong, John 0.B.E., JP 2/2 1/ -
#ZEWOB.E - AFMT
Tai Benedict 12/12 2/2 -
Fu Yan Yan 21/40 2/3 2/2
1B R R
Wang Xi Ling 20/40 3/3 2/2
FTHFE

The Board met 40 times in total for the year ended 31
December 2006 of which four were regular meetings and
two out of the four regular meetings were full Board meetings
approving the interim and annual results of the Group. The
Board has also met to discuss material transactions made
during the year and conducted reviews of the effectiveness
of the financial and internal control systems of the Group.

Appropriate director and officer liability insurance cover has
been arranged in respect of legal actions against the directors.

Chairman and chief executive officer

Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Director ("CEO") should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2006, the posts
of Chairman and CEQO were separately held by Mr. Chan
Tze Ngon and Mr. Tang Kin Hung respectively.

Annual Report 2006 F %}

(c)

- %%@/m\ﬁ%ﬁmu\a% ERmR
RPlITEFE ORPITEEETMRS
PREFCCHR TLUEAKE 2T
HRFREFE-EFENERITEEMN
AWmERNETZIERAR S U REH R
SEVBHERAGEESE 2 BRI

ARBERAESFRIERTHEN
EECEERRRBEREIRR LT

EERITHRAR

BIR<F AR EA 216 EFE RITHAR
HeAaeRoR TEA—- ARKEE.
REBE_TZRF+_A=+T—HILF
B ERERITBRAEBED R HERTF D
FTERBEAEEHE




Report of Corporate Governance
RERRE

(d)

(e)

Chairman and chief executive officer (continued)

As at the date of this report, the roles of Chairman and
CEO are both performed by Mr. Tse Michael Nam. The
Board considers Mr. Tse's experience and knowledge
crucial for the operation of its new business venture and
direction of the Group in the near future. The Board does
not believe that the current situation will impair the
balance of power and authority between the Group and
the management and does not currently propose to
separate the functions.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and (2], the Company
has appointed three Independent Non-executive Directors
who have come from diverse and professional
backgrounds with one having professional accounting
qualification for the year ended 31 December 2006. As at
the date of this report, the Company has appointed an
additional Independent Non-executive Director who is
also a professionally qualified accountant.

The Independent Non-executive Directors were appointed
for a term of not more than two years from the date of
their appointment or re-election by Shareholders. Upon
every expiry of their term, the appointment would be
renewed for a term of not more than two years. Each of
the Non-executive Directors is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by Shareholders. The Company
has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors annual confirmations as to their independence
and considers them to be sufficiently independent.

Remuneration Committee
A remuneration committee with specific written terms of
reference explaining its role and authority has been
established in June 2005.

The remuneration committee is responsible for ensuring
formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policies and overseeing the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors and senior
management and would make recommendations to the
Board in respect of the same. In fulfilling its functions,
the take
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable

remuneration committee would into

companies, respective time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and senior management
and whether the remuneration packages are competitively
attractive to retain the Executive Directors and senior

management.

(c)

(d)

(e)
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(f)

(g)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the remuneration
committee comprised 3 members, a majority of which
were Independent Non-executive Directors. As at the date
of this report, the Remuneration committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors.

The remuneration committee would meet twice a year
and it has met in June and November for the year ended
31 December 2006.

Nomination Committee

The Company did not establish a nomination committee.
The Board considers that the appointing and removing of
Directors are the collective decision of the Board and
thus does not intend to adopt the recommended best
practice under Code A.4.4 to set up a nomination
committee.

Audit Committee

The audit committee was established in June 1999 with
clear terms of reference. The primary duties of the audit
committee include making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditors, approving the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditors, reviewing and
monitoring the external auditors” independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard, and reviewing the
financial information and accounting policies of the Group
as well as overseeing the Company’s financial and
internal control systems.

The composition of the audit committee as at the date of
this report is as follows: Ms. Wang Xi Ling, Mr. Fu Yan
Yan and Mr. Benedict Tai. All members of the audit
committee are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The audit committee has unrestricted access to the
auditors of the Company, senior members and employees
of the Group and may obtain outside legal or other
independent professional opinion. The audit committee
is also authorised to investigate any activity within its
terms of reference.

The audit committee has met three times for the year
ended 31 December 2006 for reviewing the annual and
interim results and the auditing and financial matters,
reviewing and discussing the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company, and the reviewing of
the financial and internal control systems of the
Company.
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(h) Auditors’ remuneration (h)

(i)

(j)

Nature of work

THEHEE

Amount

Kok

Very Substantial Disposal, Very Substantial Acquisition
HEERLE FFEEAKE

Audit Fee

EZEM

Internal Control
The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for

(i)

820,000
850,000
BB B

EFRNE HARRERRAEER
#5854 I - DA S

ensuring that a sound and effective internal control HERIFERZ o
system is maintained within the Group so as to safeguard REAEEEERARTEZKRE-EF
the Group's assets and its Shareholders’ investments at BRI ERE

all times. Pursuant to the provision 2.5 of the Code, the
Board reviewed the need for an internal audit function
and considered it appropriate to outsource the function.

Accordingly, Lawrence CPA Limited was engaged in
December 2006 to carry out an internal audit review of
the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year
ended 31 December 2006 to enable the Company to
discharge its annual review responsibilities pursuant to
various provisions of the Code. The review covered the
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group.

Lawrence CPA Limited completed its internal audit review
and concluded satisfactorily that the internal control
systems of the Group including financial reporting,
operational and compliance controls and risk
management process are effective in safeguarding the
assets of the Group.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and
ensure that the financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. It is also the
responsibility of the Directors to ensure the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
Lawrence CPA Limited on their reporting responsibilities
in respect of the financial statements of the Group is set
out on pages 29 and 30.

The Directors confirm that, to their best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

(j)
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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L

Lawrence CPA Limited

3/F., Hong Kong Trade Centre,
161-167, Des Voeux Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of
Venture International Investment Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability]

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Venture
International Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set
out on pages 31 to 96, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 December 2006, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

*  For identification purpose only £ {3 5
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2006 and of the Group's result and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Lawrence CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
13 April 2007
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEWlER

Year ended 31 December 2006 HE—TZTAF+-_A=+—HILFE

2006 2005
—®¥AE  -TTAF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
i zF FHT FHET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BESEEK
Revenue A 6 58,740 128,884
Direct costs BEEKAR (46,069) (119,990)
Gross profit E7 12,671 8,894
Other income H fib g 2 6 10,915 8,902
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (3,555) (4,039)
Administrative expenses THER (27,897 (23,948)
Other expenses HimE R (542) (1,046)
Impairment loss of goodwill B EEE 15 - (602)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale AHEHERE
investment 1B &5 18 (3,200) =
LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BESEEK 2 EBR (11,608) (11,839)
Finance costs Bl & X A 9 (25) (567)
LOSS BEFORE TAX MRBATER (11,633) (12,406)
Income tax income Fr 15 B A 10 1,642 2,413
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM REKSLEEKTFERSE 7
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (9,991) (9,993)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION TRIEEK
Loss for the year from discontinued operation B4R IEEBFEEE  32(b) - (27,850)
Loss for the year FEEIE (9,991) (37,843)
Attributable to: RA
Equity holders of the parent HARERFEEA (9,991) (35,672)
Minority interests DERRER - (2,171)
(9,991) (37,843)
LOSS PER SHARE FROM CONTINUING HERERERL
AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS EBBRER 11
Basic (HK$ per share) BEX (BRET) 0.02 0.07
Diluted (HK$ per share) HE% (BR¥ET) N/A N/A
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SREBEERER

Year ended 31 December 2006 BHE—ZTZTAF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2006 2005
—EEXRF —EETRF
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
Kt e FET FAETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Fixed assets BEEE&E 12 1,379 1,916
Intangible assets B AE 13 47,501 12,772
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 16 - 91,700
48,880 106,388
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories T8 17 8,857 3,444
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8R18 18 22,464 24,718
Prepayments, deposits and BRRIE RE
other receivables Ko E b g W 5K 19 20,353 16,006
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 16 66,591 =
Pledged time deposits B E B 77 3K 21 15,624 139
Bank balances and cash RITHER IR 21 56,630 52,173
190,519 96,480
TOTAL ASSETS EEHAE 239,399 202,868
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables e E 5 ERIA 22 2,336 2,002
Tax liabilities HIEaE 6,938 8,993
Accrued liabilities and other payables EEtaEREMERMNK 23 59,115 35,528
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 24 18 626
Current portion of obligation under BEHERE AN
finance lease =il 25 - 203
68,407 47,349
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFHE 122,112 49,131
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
meBsEBRER

Year ended 31 December 2006 HE—TZTAF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2006 2005

—B¥AE  -TTRF

Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000

Kt ot FET FA&r

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EE#ERARDAERS 170,992 155,519
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE

Obligation under finance lease A& &R 25 - 51

Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEEE 26 - 159

- 210

NET ASSETS BEFRE 170,992 155,309
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRHE

Share capital % < 27 67,500 55,735

Reserves k] 29(a) 103,492 99,574

TOTAL EQUITY HEE 170,992 155,309

Approved by the board of directors on 13 April 2007.

Tse Michael Nam
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBEBRK

Year ended 31 December 2006 BHE—ZTZTAF+-_A=1+—HILFE

Con- Exchange Re-  Share Accumu- Sub-total
Share  Share tributed Goodwill fluctuation valuation options lated of Minority
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses reserves interest Total
EXRD BRE £2 |

Bx RGER SARG BEEE BE EEEE  BE RRER SR BREE 85
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS 000
TExT TErT TErT TEr TEx TEx TEx TEr ThAr TET TAT

[note 27)
(Hz£27)

At 1 January 2005 R-ZZR%—-A—H 50,273 341274 (19] (43,248) 79 - - (217.669) 80,417 4,454 135144
Issue of consideration BORERS

shares 5,462 1,038 - - - - - - 1,038 - 6,500
Written off on disposal of ~ HE—KKBAAE

a subsidiary HsH - - - 42646 - - - - 42648 - 42648
Impairment of goodwill BERE - - - 602 - - - - 602 - 402
Currency translation NEREER

differences - - - - 315 - - - 315 - 315
Fair value gain on available- A ERE 2 ATE

for-sale investment WiaE - - - - - 10,228 - - 10,228 - 10,228
Elimination on buyout KL ERE

of minority interest BREEH - - - - - - - - - [4454)  (4,454)
Net loss for the year FEFER - - - - - - - (35.672) (35.672) - (35.472)
At 31 December 2005 R-ZZRE

TZA=+-H 55,735 342312 (19) - 39 10,228 - [(253341) 99,574 - 155,309

At 1 January 2006 R-ZEE:¥-A—H 55,735 342,312 (19) = 394 10,228 - [253,341) 99,574 - 155,309
Issue of consideration BIRERS

shares 11,765 235 - - - - - - 235 - 12,000
Recognition of equity-settled BRBRALE

share based payments Rt 3% - - - - - - 1505 - 1505 - 1505
Currency translation NEREER

differences - - - - 738 - - - 738 - 738
Fair value gain on available- A ERE 2 ATE

for-sale investment g - - - - - 11,431 - - 11,431 - 11,431
Net loss for the year FEFER - - - - - - - 9991)  [9.991) - 9.991)
At 31 December 2006 RZEERE

+-R=+—-H 67,500 342,547 (19] - 1132 21,659 1,505 (263,332) 103,492 - 170,992

Venture International Investment Holdings Limited ZEBEBKREZERBR DT




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2006 HE—TZTAF+-_A=+—HILFE

2006 2005
ZBEXRE “TTREF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
ff it FER FBT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Loss before tax BB Al B
Continuing operations FEKEER (11,633) (12,406)
Discountinued operation BRIEER 32(b(1]) - (4,897)
(11,633) (17,303)
Adjustments for: TR R EEL R
Interest income FIEUA 6 (547) (594)
Amortisation of intangible assets B AESRH 13 97 811
Depreciation e 12 1,520 2,255
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill BEEREERAERSE 15 - 602
Impairment loss of unlisted available-for-sale FETAHEERE
investment VEREN Ei! 7 3,200 =
Write-off of fixed assets [E] E & 7= 85 7 151 56
[Profit] Loss on disposal of fixed assets, net HEEEEE (MH)
FEE 6 (400) 4
Profit on disposal of listed available-for-sale HE EmAIftHE
investment BE 2% T 6 (9,290) -
Excess of net assets over cost of a business EBaNEERE
combination BHAAZER - (2,234)
Finance costs BE AN 9 25 840
Other income H fth U 25 - (4]
Waiver by the buyer of a subsidiary of —XMBEARIERHE
an amount due by the Group REE RN FHIE - 18,615
Provision for doubtful debts, net REEBEFE - 843
Share-based payments B 13 14 3K 7 1,505 -
Operating (loss) profit before Rt BEE2ED
movements in working capital Al (BE) &7l (15,372) 3,891
Movements in working capital LEERED 30 14,465 (28,261)
Cash used in operations EXBFMARS (907) (24,370)
PRC income tax paid BEHHBMEH (620) (1,078)
Net cash used in operating activities REXBMARSFHE (1,527) (25,448)
Net cash used in operating activities: REEBMAREFE:
Continuing operations SELE X (1,527) (11,298)
Discontinued operation BRIEER 32lc) - (14,150)
(1,527) (25,448)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

= A =
,Zw < i/}lbii‘%

Year ended 31 December 2006 BHE—TZTAF+-_A=+—HILFE

2006 2005
ZBEXRE “TTREF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
fif &t FET FBT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchases of fixed assets BEETEE 12 (537) (1,001)
Acquisition of computer software EATKH MY 13 (1,796) =
Repayment by an investee company E—REHRERFER - 23,045
(Increase) Decrease in pledged time deposits BHEFEBER
(32 ) B> (15,485) 5,002
Decrease in non-pledged time BARRISAABES
deposits with original maturity of more =E Az mEREH
than three months when acquired 7 5O’ - 33,962
Interest received BIFE 547 594
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired Yok bt /8 2~ 8] 0 BR
BARE 31(c) (19,639) (5,909]
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HEETEEEMSZRE 400 =
Proceeds from disposal of listed available-for-sale & ET AT H &
investment, net KBS HIEFE 42,630 =
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, HE—RKHEA A
net of cash of the subsidiary disposed of FT{5 %8 Mk &
Mﬂ%“ﬂziﬁﬁ - 3,323
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate, net Yo BEE 751 (415)
Net cash generated by investing activities REEDISHEFE 6,871 58,601
Net cash generated by (used in) REEBDME(A)RE
investing activities: EEk
Continuing operations FELEER 6,871 59,350
Discontinued operation BRIEER 32lc) - (749)
6,871 58,601

Venture International Investment Holdings Limited ZEBEBKREZERBR DT



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

= AT =
,Zw < ﬁ/}lbi%

Year ended 31 December 2006 HE—TZTAF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2006 2005
—EERE “TTREF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
ff it FER FBT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH
New inception of bank loans FERITER - 47,115
New inception of other loans i H B 3K - 6,500
Repayment of bank loans EBERITERN - (69,865]
Repayment of other loans EEHMER - (8,060)
Decrease in loan under trust receipt ERAERRETR D - (1,170
Interest paid B E (1 (805)
Payment of finance lease: HEEEHS:
capital element BRE S (254) (275)
interest element MEBH (24) (35)
Net cash used in MEEHMAEEFHE
financing activities (279) (26,595)
Net cash generated by (used in) RmEESRE (FTA)
financing activities: ReFHE:
Continuing operations REREER (279] (26,955)
Discontinued operation BRIEER 32lc) - 360
(279) (26,595)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BeRESEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS 12 h R 5,065 6,558
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNzReRB2SED
of the year 51,547 44,989
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZESREASEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 56,612 51,547
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH BeRESEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3 Ay
Cash and bank balances Re MRTEH 56,630 52,173
Bank overdraft, secured BERMBIES - (626)
Bank overdraft, unsecured EERFITES (18) -
56,612 51,547
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Balance Sheet

BEERER

31 December 2006 —ETXF+_-_A=+—H

2006 2005
—EEXRF —ETETRF
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
lioka FET FE T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Fixed assets EE & E 12 136 254
Interests in subsidiaries A SN - 14 99,690 100,847
99,826 101,101
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and BRRIE RE R
other receivables H 8 5k 650 515
Bank balances and cash RITEHRER S 21 31 30
681 545
TOTAL ASSETS BEEH#E 100,507 101,646
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEirBaEREMEMNK 23 2,167 4,037
Amount due to an investee company =R E QA
FRIE 82 -
Bank overdraft RITHE X 24 10 598
Current portion of obligation A& TSR IE
under finance lease Z BIHAE8 5 25 - 203
2,259 4,838
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFHE (1,578) (4,293)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EE#ERRBAERE 98,248 96,808
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Obligation under finance lease A& & AR 25 - 51
98,248 96,757
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAE &E
Share capital i 27 67,500 55,735
Reserves &1 29(b) 30,748 41,022
98,248 96,757

Approved by the board of directors on 13 April 2007.

Tse Michael Nam
EilpES
Director

EE

Chan Tze Ngon

®¥ B

Director

EE

ER-ZELFHAT=ARESTSH]E-
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Notes to Financial Statements

B S ER AR MY

31 December 2006 —EEXF+-_A=+—H

1.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GENERAL INFORMATION

Venture International Investment Holdings Limited
(formerly know as “Technology Venture Holdings Limited”)
(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) distribute and sell computer hardware and
software products, provide computer technology and real
estate consultancy service. The Group has its operation
principally in Mainland China.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Room
3101, 31st Floor, 118 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Unless otherwise stated, the Group’'s consolidated
financial statements are presented in thousands of units
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000).

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
compilation of these consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. Unless otherwise stated, these
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale

financial assets, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the company’'s accounting
policies. The areas involving high degree of
judgement or where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are summarised in Note 4.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BT Rk M et

31 December 2006 —EZXF+_-_A=+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHEHXE (®)
(continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 RBLEXE (8)

RN BB T EER

R-FTXRNF BAEGHANAE
BN A KRB A S5 HE A MK
AHEFRA T RRETE
7B B % i & 2E I o AN 52 (B R A £
HEXBGRBE RN BT REE

Adoption of HKFRS

In 2006, the HKICPA has issued new and revised
HKFRS that are effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. The Group adopts the standard,
amendments and interpretation, which are
relevant to its operation.

SR 0011 5 87 2T R AR5 T B B 7
5.6 2 B 4 B A SR B R Y
RHRED-

The adoption of these new and revised HKFRS did
not result in changes to the Group’'s accounting
policies.

REH AW EIEF RN T 52 B
BRAE S B m AR ERZ #TRT
RBEIERAMBEREER B
S EU T HARNEET R

The Group has not early adopted the following
new and revised HKFRS that have been issued
but not yet effective for the current accounting
period. It is not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group's financial statements. REREMNERATE-
HKAS 1 Capital Disclosures! BB g £ BERKE
(Amendment) F15% (BETA)
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures! BB BwmE ERITE RE
R F 7%
HKFRS 8 Operating segment? BEMBRE a5 e
R ZE 85
HKI(IFRIC)-int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach BB (BREE REREBGHE
under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting BERBZE REVRERER
in Hyperinflationary Economies? g) —R%E IR 2 B 75
F 75 mEESE
HK(FRIC)-int 8  Scope to HKFRS 2 BB (BREE BEWKHREE
HBERBEE AFE2RcHE
) —ZEFSR
HK(FRIC)-int9  Reassessment of Embedded BE (BREE BEHEASTET
Derivatives’ HERREEE A°
g) —REFEIHR
HKI(IFRIC)-int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and a8 (ERE® FPHIBHRER
Impairment® BEREZE AES
g) —2E
£10%
i Effective for annual period beginning on or I RZEELF-A—HHZER
after 1 January 2007 16 2 BB A
2 Effective for annual period beginning on or 2 RZETNF-A—AziziERA
after 1 January 2009 18 2 F [ B A B
3 Effective for annual period beginning on or SO RZETRE=RA—HZzERA
after 1 March 2006 18 2 F [ B A A
8 Effective for annual period beginning on or “C RZIZETZRFRAA-—BRZER
after 1 May 2006 15 2 F 2 B A R
5 Effective for annual period beginning on or S RIETRFANA—AZzER
after 1 June 2006 18 2 F [ B A B
6 Effective for annual period beginning on or ¢ RZEBETZRFET—A—HZziE
after 1 November 2006 Fia 2 & E B AR

Venture International Investment Holdings Limited ZEBEBKREZERBR DT




Notes to Financial Statements

BT Rk M et

31 December 2006 —EETXF+-_A=+—H

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that control

CRRASES.

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any
minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BT Rk M et

31 December 2006 —EZXF+_-_A=+—H

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

CONSOLIDATION (continued)

In the Company's balance sheet the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

SEGMENT REPORTING

A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of other business
segments. A geographical segment is engaged in
providing products or services within a particular
economic environment that are subject to risks
and returns which are different from segments
operating in other economic environments.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and Lliabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges or qualifying net investment

hedges.

Translation difference on non-monetary
items, such as equities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets, are
included in the exchange fluctuation
reserve in equity.

2.

FTEEHEE @

2.2

2.3
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Notes to Financial Statements

BT Rk M et

31 December 2006 —EETXF+-_A=+—H

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FEE5HEHX (&)
2.4  FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (continued) 2.4 HNEBRE (F)
[c) Group companies lc) ZEETAA

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i) assets and Lliabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each
income statement are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions);
and

(i)  all resulting exchange differences
are recognised as a separate
component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments,
are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income
statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing

rate.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BT Rk M et

31 December 2006 —EZXF+_-_A=+—H

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5

FIXED ASSETS

The assets are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost
may also include transfers from equity of any
gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are expended in the income
statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost or revalued amounts to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Leasehold 33 1/3% or over
improvements the lease terms,
whichever is lower
- Vehicles 33 1/3%

- Furniture, fittings 20% to 33 1/3%

and equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
amount of the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

2.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2006 —EETXF+-_A=+—H

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2.6

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost
of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary, associate or
jointly controlled entity at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of
subsidiaries before 1 January 2005 is
eliminated against reserves. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment
testing.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of the costs
incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives

of three years.

Costs associated with developing or

maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Costs that are directly
associated with the production of
identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Group, and that will
probably generate economic benefits
exceeding costs beyond one year; are
recognised as intangible assets. Direct
costs include the software development
employee costs and an appropriate portion

of relevant overheads.

Computer software development costs
recognised as assets are amortised over
their estimated useful lives not exceeding
three years.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation, which are at least tested
annually for impairment and are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject
to amortization are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Investments are recognised on a trade-date basis
where the purchase or sale of an investment is
under a contract whose terms require delivery of
the investment within the timeframe established
by the market concerned, and are initially
measured at fair value, plus directly attributable

transaction costs.

Gains and losses of available-for-sale investments
arising from changes in fair value are recognised
directly in equity, until the security is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized
in equity is included in the profit or loss for the
period. Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss for equity investments classified as available-
for-sale are not subsequently reversed through
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss for debt instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the

recognition of the impairment loss.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the
first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises

first-in,

design costs, raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the Group’'s balance sheet when
the Group becomes a party to the contracts in

question.

Financial assets

(a) Trade receivables, deposits, other
receivables and prepayments
Trade receivables, deposits, other

receivables and prepayments are measured
at initial recognition at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.
Appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in
profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. The
allowance recognised is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition.

Depending on the nature of the product or
service and the background of the
customer, payment term ranges from

advance payment to 90-day credit.
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. TESFHEHE (&)
2.10 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 210 =@ TIA (&)

Financial assets (continued) 2HEE (B)
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (b) ReRREFEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash RekReFEMBETF

on hand, deposits and other short-term
highly liquid investments (normally with
maturities of 3 months or less) that are
readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by the Group are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

BIRE FRIAKHAM—
R =M A AREE-
AERERSENERAR
cHEEEHRABRTIKRZ
SEREEHRE-

E@EERRAK
AEBEMBETEREERRAT
B AT ANEHEZABT AR
TRAEEMEATAZESED
B-BRATARERAAKEEE
RINGAERBERFNGREEZA
oS EERBERBKATA
R Z GRTBURBN T

(a) Trade payables (a) e & 5 RR1A
Trade payables, other payable and amount e B 5 BRIE - H b JE T
due to an investee company are initially E N K€ & - WNCIF ]
measured at fair value, and are AR AFEFE Hig
subsequently measured at amortised cost, RABBRA R E 28
using the effective interest rate method. 5 B AR AR o

(b) Equity instruments (b) AR T A
Equity instruments issued by the Company RARPETRALE
are recorded at the proceeds received, net RE WS RIER B 5%
of direct issue costs. TR
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

2.1

(a)

(b)

Post-employment benefits

various
benefit
schemes. The schemes are generally

Group companies operate

mandatory post-employment

funded through payments to insurance
companies or trustee-administered funds
in Hong Kong and pertinent state
organizations in Mainland China. All
schemes are defined contribution plans
which are pension plans under which the
Group pays fixed contributions. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the funds in
question do not hold sufficient assets to
pay to the employees the benefits relating
to their services in the current and prior
periods.

The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled,
share-based compensation plan. The fair
value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is
The total
amount to be expended over the vesting

recognised as an expense.

period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets).

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
[c] Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable, at the
discretion of the directors, when
employment is terminated before normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Group recognised
when it is

termination benefits

demonstrably committed to either
terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal
plan without possibility of withdrawal, or
providing termination benefits as a result
of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more than
12 months after balance sheet date are

discounted to present value.

(d) Profit-sharing and bonus plans
The Group provides bonus to employees at
the discretion of the directors. When the
bonus is declared, the Group recognises a
liability and an expense. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is more likely than not that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be minimal.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue comprises the fair values of sales of

2.13

2.14

goods and services,

net of value-added tax,

rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales

within the Group. Revenue is recognised as

follows:

(a)

Sale of goods

Sale of goods is recognised when a Group
entity has delivered products to the
customer, who has accepted the products
and collectibility of the related receivables
is reasonably assured.

Products may be sold with a right of return
under individual contracts. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide
for such returns at the time of sale.

(b) Rendering of service
Provision of service is recognised in the
accounting period in which the service is
completed.

(c) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

LEASES

(a) Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases [net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are expended in
the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.14

LEASES (continued)
(b) Finance lease
Leases of assets where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance lease.
Finance leases are capitalised at the
lease’s commencement at the lower of the
fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance charges
so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in current
and non-current borrowings. The interest
element of the finance cost is recognised
in the income statement over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period. The
investment properties acquired under
finance leases are carried at their fair

value.

INCOME TAX

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
deferred tax. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax liabilities are recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised directly in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
periods.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet
liability method,
differences between the carrying amount of the

providing for temporary
assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amount used for taxation
purposes (tax base].
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESFEHE (4

2.15 INCOME TAX [continued)
The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax asset is not recognised when there
is uncertainty about whether sufficient taxable
profit will be made in the future to allow the

related tax benefit to be utilised.

2.16 RELATED PARTIES

Parties are considered to be related if one party
has the ability, directly, or indirectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence. Related parties may
be individuals or corporate entities.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BMERREE

Activities of the Group expose it to a variety of financial AEBEEB AR ZAMBERER KNE
risks. Group's management monitors on an ongoing basis EEREREERIINE X FERE
the movements and trends in foreign exchanges, interest mERZEHREL WREBEEHE

rates, inventory and product prices. Where significant,
the Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
certain risk exposures.

Risk management is carried out by the operating
companies and the head offices in Hong Kong. Group
management identifies, evaluates and, where necessary,
hedges financial risks in co-operation with the Group’s
operating units.

(a) MARKET RISK
(i) Currency risk
The Group operates principally in Mainland
China and is mainly exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from changes in
exchange rate of the Renminbi, primarily
with respect to the Hong Kong dollar.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEBRERE W
(al  MARKET RISK (continued] (a) TWHERE (E)
(i) Currency risk (continued) (i) B mE R (&)

To manage their foreign exchange risk HERERKREERS
arising from future commercial EHREERABELEZ
transactions, and recognised assets and SMNER PR - REEETE
liabilities, entities in the Group use forward BeRBEEARRAEGN-
contracts on a discretionary basis. Foreign SN BE [ B B 2R 2R 7 2 R
exchange risk arises when future S ERAEERBRMN
commercial transactions, recognised FZEBYEEEIEM
assets and liabilities are denominated in a B

currency that is not the entity’s functional

currency.
The Group has its principal investment in AEEEXEREMNTE
Mainland China which, for financial A YIRS S 15
reporting purpose, is treated as foreign EBINETSEE T HE
operations, whose net assets are exposed EFERHIIEHRER
to foreign currency transaction risk. Bro P ARE BB INETS
Currency exposure arising from the net ZEEFEEEZEER
assets of the Group’s foreign operations is i NE K I BB
not hedged as the currency risk is not BBt B e

deemed significant.

(i) Price risk (if] & 15 /2 B
The Group is exposed to risk of equity AEERARFEAHEES
securities because the Group holds BhE 2 M E AR EE 5 A
available-for-sale financial assets. B o

(b)  CREDIT RISK (bl FERR

The Group has no significant concentrations of AEETEESEER 2EER

credit risk. It also has policies in place to ensure B EEHITHRABRERHEE

that sales of products are made to customers with TAHEEERHZREP -

an appropriate credit history.

(C)  LIQUIDITY RISK c) RBEERR
The Group manages the risk of funding problem REBABKFARR S ARRKE
by maintaining sufficient cash, marketable R RERBERTEEZ ST R
securities and committed credit facilities during BEA#ECEREERAEESR
periods of low cash position. 780

(d) CASH FLOW AND FAIR VALUE INTEREST RATE (d) BeREEAFEFNERK
RISK
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing HRAEEWEERGTEEER
assets and liabilities, the Group's income and BE WMARERAREER®
operating cash flows are relatively unaffected by MEREDEH SN X LR
ordinary changes in market interest rates. X
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IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Estimates significant to the Group included those relating
to fair value of financial assets and liabilities, useful lives
of computer software and bad debts.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented primarily by business
and secondarily by geographical locations of external
customers.

Each segment represents a strategic business unit that
offers products or services which are subject to risks
and returns different from other segments. The Group's
four principal segments are:

(a) the banking and finance system integration
services segment which provides system
integration, software development, engineering,
maintenance and professional outsourcing
services for banking and finance,
telecommunications and public sector clients;

(b) the software solutions for banks and public sector
segment which concentrates on the banking,
e-commerce and public sectors with a business
focus on e-business operations and online
marketplaces;

(c] IT management and support segment which
provides IT services to small and medium-sized
property agents;

(d) the real estate consultancy service which serves
the Shanghai property market.

In determining the Group’'s geographical segments,
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to
the segments based on the location of the assets.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

(i) BUSINESS SEGMENTS
The following tables present revenue, result and
certain asset, liability and expenditure information

5. Z®WMEHR W)

DEEMHEERERENVRERMERE
ME=HHEMAEEET

(i) E S
TRIINAEEXRE D B2 K
MER ETEE ABRAX

for the Group's business segments. 2B Ko
Software solutions
Banking and for banks and
finance systems the public sector
integration services #TRARER IT management Real estate
RTRERER RAERZEE and support consultancy service Eliminations Consolidated
LEEY BAEE EANREER R FHERERY f# ke

2006 205 2006 205 2006
TRAE TEEIT CERA TREE CEEAS
HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSOO0  HK$'000
A TER  THR TER  THA

2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

= R R SR L R L
HAS 000 HK$'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HK$'000  HKS 000

Thr  TEn  TEn TR TEr  fEn TEn

Seqment revenue: ABHA:
Sales to external mIRP
customers fEi7 HE 51,867 124,899 b4k 3462 3,440 bA] 2789 - - - 58,760 128884
Inter-segment sales AERLEE - - - - - - - - - - - -
Interest income flElA 52 50 - - 1 1 - - - - 453 52
Other income A 407 b4 P[] 12 - - - - - i 5,526
Total g 52,726 130,963 914 3474 346 YA 2,789 - - - 59870 134962
Seqrent el PEE | mn Lol s 18 B W bl - . Cobw) )
Unallocated interest FARAE
income WA % i
Unallocated gains Ao ENE 9,691 2783
Unallocated expenses RARAX (12543)  [1631%)

Loss from continting FEEEZEL

operations Bk
Finance costs BERE
Loss before tax hRAES
Income tax FER

Loss for the year from ~~ HEAEEH
continuing operations EEER

(11,608) (11,839
(25) (57)
(11,633) (12.406)
1,642 2413

9991 19.9%]
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(i) BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued)

5. ZWER )
0 EHDH (A

Software solutions
Banking and for banks and
finance systems the public sector
integration services BTRARER IT management Real estate
BTRERES RAER &S and support consultancy service Eliminations Consoliadated
EREE LY YiES ERNHERR AR BHEBRRE it B4
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
CEERE CEERE CBEAE CITRE CIEAF CS5REF CBERE CSERE CBEIAE CIERF CEEIAF CITRS
HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000
FEr  FEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  fEr  TEr  TEr  TEn fEr TEn
Segment assets PiEE 149,819 152434 150 i 18,408 14,206 35,976 - l6nT0T) (8392) 154,646 108325
Unallocated assets: RARAE:
Available-for-sale RHERE
investments 66,591 91,700
Others L] 12 188
Total assets AEBE 29399 20868
Segment liabilities AEk (98,779) (89919 [669)  (1,118)  (1,526) (589]  (5,305) - 47,707 %392 (58372)  (33.234]
Unallocated liabilities AORER (10,017)  [13699)
Bank overdrats included ~ SFAZHEEZ
in seqment liabilities FiEn (18] [626)
Total labilites ElE (68,407) (47559
Other segment EfnAER
information:
Cash and bank TARHEE
balances included LBEREA
In segment assets ith 56,452 51,616 1 8 kXl 489 105 - - - 56,592 133
Unallocated amounts AARLE 3 i
56,630 LYAVA]
Pledged time TASHEE
deposits included LEERES
in seqment assets B3 15,624 139 - - - - - - 15,62 139
Depreciation and fERRH
amortisation 1,189 1310 - 500 U 159 - - - 131 1810
Unallocated amounts AAEEE 148 i3
1,520 205
Provision for doubtful REREAE
debts, net m 1,042 - 3 - 255 - - - 528 1,045
Other non-cash Efpsne
expenses 5 (il - - ] - - (148 - - - [149) ]
Unallocated amounts AAEEE (2] (56
[151) (58]
Capital expenditure EXAR 4 N - 388 11 82 30 - - - 506 1
Unallocated amounts AAEEE 3 %
537 1,067
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. Z2HEM A
(ii) GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (ii) ih & 5 EB
The following tables present revenue and certain TRE AL E MR 52 WA
asset and expenditure information for the Group’s RETFTEEHRX 2 EF -

geographical segments.

Hong Kong Elsewhere in the PRC Eliminations Consolidated
gk HEAMBE if &a
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

SREAE CTTRF CREAF CTTRF CRRAE CETAR CREAF CIERS
HK$'000  HKSO000  HK$'000  HKSO00  HK$'000 — HKS000  HK$'000 — HK$'000
Féx  TEr FEx  TEr  TEx  TEr  TEr  TERL

Segment revenue: AHHA:
Sales to external mIE P
customers fEHZ 48 540 526 58,200 128360 - - 58,740 128,884
Segment assets AHEE 593,508 569 409 128,147 95,673 (548,847)  (953.914) 172,808 111,168
Unallocated amounts: AAREE:
Available-for-sale AEEHERE
investments 66,591 91,700

239,399 202,868

Other seqment information: £33 & #
Capital expendiure ~ EAFER K 295 506 m - - 531 1,087
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6. WARHMWE
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, WAEEEEm (ENMBREERE S
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, and ) BEARERE 2 BEZFE-ANEEE
services. All significant intra-group transactions have THABIMZ —1ERAR G ERERE R
been eliminated on consolidation. EREEvE
An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows: W A\ Rz EoAth W & 3 AT 40 T
Group
rEH
2006 2005
ZBEXRE —EEREF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHE
CONTINUING OPERATIONS: FRREXRY:
Revenue PN
Sale of goods iH & & m 34,181 110,958
Rendering of computer 12 {5 B8 12 i AR 75
technology services 21,770 17,926
Rendering of real estate 12 1 55 3 22 R B9 AR 7%
consultancy services 2,789 -
58,740 128,884
Other income e &
Interest income FEHKA 547 594
Reversal of over-provision of BEBEFE
business tax in previous years EENBERE 195 5,285
Excess of interest in the net fair GG NG 6= -3
value of acquiree’s identifiable RBRFRATERER
assets and liabilities over cost B E — R B A R
of acquisition of KAz =%
a subsidiary - 2,234
Gain on disposal of listed HEEMmAHEERE
available-for-sales investment 2 W a 9,290 =
Gain on disposal of fixed asset & B E & E 2 W 400 -
Government tax subsidies B 758 18 & B 401 453
Sundry income B A 82 3364
10,915 8,902
69,655 137,786
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7. LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS

The Group’'s loss from continuing operations has been

7.

FEAREXBFERR

REBZE

BREXBERCNE G

=L

arrived at after charging (crediting): A
2006 2005
—BEXRE —ETRF
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
W & FET FET
Costs of inventories sold and EERFERMEH
services rendered PR 7 2 B 7R 46,069 119,990
Depreciation E 12 1,520 1,754
Amortisation of computer software & [ B { £ §8 13 97 -
Impairment loss recognised in ERAEERERE
respect of goodwill - 602
Impairment loss of an unlisted FELEMIRERMEEE —
investment - Beijing Dongshi I RRAER KA
Shuangwei Education i1 bR 35 B R 2 A
Technology Co., Limited 3,200 -
Equity settled share-based R 7 48 B PR 1 1~ 5K
payments 1,505 -
Payments under operating leases i RIEFLEHE
in respect of land and buildings (NEA 2,328 3,171
Auditor’s remuneration % ERRD B & 850 897
Staff costs, excluding directors’ BEIXAEK (TEE
remuneration: EEMe)
Salaries e 11,432 10,750
Contribution to defined 6] 7 #E & Al 3R K
benefit retirement plans: sHEIHE R
Mainland China B A 1,499 1,394
Hong Kong BB 112 115
Other benefits H 18 7 2,588 1,405
15,631 13,664
Net exchange gains B 5 Uz 7 7R (455) (747)
Provision for doubtful debts RERE R 528 1,045
Write-off of fixed assets i sH & E B = 151 56

Venture International Investment Holdings Limited ZEBEBKREZERBR DT




Notes to Financial Statements

BT Rk M et

31 December 2006 —EETXF+-_A=+—H

8. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND THE 8. E=ERIEESHEE#HNS
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(a) DIRECTORS (a) =

The remuneration of the Company's directors
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and
Section 161
Ordinance are as follows:

of the Hong Kong Companies

BIE ETRBREE D EHEHE
16HEEBE 2 KRR EEI 2 W0

¢

Group
REE
2006 2005
—EEXRE —ETRHEF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAET
Independent non-executive BIENITES:
directors:
Fees e 499 550
Share-based payments RENEA 102 =
601 550
Executive directors: WITES:
Basic salaries, allowances BN e =
and benefits in kind REYH = 5,446 6,424
Contributions to [\ 58 Hll M A FE & 3K
mandatory provident fund 30 37
5,476 6,461
6,077 7,011

The number of directors whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

T

BN T5EEZES AR

Number of directors

EEAH
2006 2005
—REAE  —TEAF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T8 T % 1,000,000% 7T 5 g
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T & 2,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T % 3,000,0007 7T 2 2
7 7
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8. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND THE 8. EERIEZESFEEMS ()
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)
(b)  The remuneration of every director for the year is (b) FRBEFZHMESHINWAT:
set out below:

Employer’s

contribution

to pension

scheme Share-based

Name Fees Salary E{k&:t8  payments Total
i ne e RBEIHR  ROMAR X
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FAET FET FAET FAET FAET

(1) Executive
HTES
Chan Tze Ngon - 2,686 12 - 2,698
RF&H
Wu Emmy (resigned on 10 October 2006) - 2,123 10 - 2,133
REGF(R-BERETATEEE)
Tang Kin Hung [resigned on 26 May 2006 and = 637 8 = 645

reappointed on 10 October 2006)
Bt (WSS FRA-TABHT
BRZBERETATHEENZER)

(2) Independent Non-executive
BUFYTES
Lo Siew Kiong, John (resigned on 23 June 2006} 95 = = = 95
BER (R-ZTREAAZTZHEME)
Fu Yan Yan 175 - - 34 209
& R X
Wang Xi Ling 150 = = 34 184
IF%
Tai Benedict (appointed on 23 June 2006) 79 - - 34 113
FUE(RZBERESAZT=PEZE)

499 5,446 30 102 6,077
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8. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND THE 8. EERIEZESFHEEMS (&)
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(c) FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (c) hEREFES

The five highest paid employees included three REN DERERHFEEBRE=
(2005: three) directors during the year, details of Z(ZZEZERF =ZR)EFF K

whose remuneration are set out above. EMeFBEHN Lo
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two BEmBEETFHTRME (ZEE
(2005: two) non-director, highest paid employees hE - MA)FESREEZHEF

are as follows: BT

2006 2005
ZEEXRF —TERF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET

Basic salaries, other allowances EARZH 4 H M2 K&

and benefits in kind B = 1,401 1,241
Contributions to 7] 54 il 1 A 78 @ K
mandatory provident fund 24 24
1,425 1,265

The remuneration of each of the non-director, highest BHE_ZZEREFR-_ZZRFFT A=
paid employees for the year ended 31 December 2006 T-HLEFE SFEEERFREEL
and 2005 fell within Nil to HK$1,000,000 band. B & =% T =1,000,000/8 7T °
During the year, no discretionary bonus, inducement to &N R 3 A B IEFEAL SR Sl A
join and compensation for loss of office has been made. REEZ BRE)RBERAHE-
There was no arrangement under which a director waived FAW BT EMEZHRREKIREZEHRR
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. EAM & 2 2B
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group RRRABERAR KBEEBERIGOIR
had no significant obligations for long service payments EoAREHEESEWESKRARSE
to its employees pursuant to the requirements of the T HEe

Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
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9.

10.

FINANCE COSTS 9. ®WEHRE
Group
REE
2006 2005
—EERE —TEERF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FE T
Interest on bank and other HARAFRNBHEEZ
borrowing wholly repayable RITREMBEE 2 FE
within five years 1 532
Interest on finance leases BMEMBEEF S 24 35
25 567
GROUP INCOME TAX INCOME 10. AEBERBHEA
2006 2005
—EEXRF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FAETT
Current tax SFECEE 2
on continuing operations: B AT I8 :
Hong Kong B - =
Mainland China B A3 784 1,160
Overprovision BEFE
in previous years iR HE (2,267) (3,499)
(1,483) (2,339)
Deferred tax (Note 26) EIER IR (B 5 26) (159) (74)
Tax income RN N (1,642) (2,413)

The current tax charge principally relate to continuing

operations of the following subsidiaries.

Companies
A

BEEE (E8) BRA A
(Topasia Tech (Shanghai) Limited)

BHESMERYE (L&) BRAA

Income tax rate

Frg BB R
27%
33%

(Topasia IT Service (Shanghai) Company Limited)

BIEART T8 52t &= 22 B LA TS B B & B 2 %

BEEREMRE-
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10. GROUP INCOME TAX INCOME (continued) 10. AEBEREHEA (@)
The tax income for the year can be reconciled to the loss FEMBRAEIES Kk 2 BEHER
per the consolidated income statement as follows: U
2006 2005
ZEBEXREF —ZETREF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FERT FET
Loss before tax R 75 A 5 1B (11,633) (12,406)
Tax credit at REBER
rates applicable to losses in the 55 18 i B B R
countries concerned FTEZHIEE S (8,026) (7,828)
Income not subject to tax BERBUWA (1,782) (9,679)
Expenses not deductible for RS
tax purpose 10,452 18,663
Effect of tax loss I
carried forward (Rl - 4
Effect of utilisation of A AEETIA
tax losses brought forward EBRzTE (19) -
Tax charge at the Group's RAEEER X
effective rate TEZBIEXH 625 1,160
Overprovision of tax BEFEDIRBRER
in previous years (2,267) -
Adjustments in respect of iwEF E RN I
current tax of previous years 2 B - (3,573)
Tax income for the year FERBRA (1,642) (2,413)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$18,000,000 (2005: HK$18,000,000) that
are available for offsetting against future taxable profits

ARERBEAEEREBREN
18,000,000/ 7T (= FF H % 18,000,000
AT AIHEEELEBRARZ ARE

RPN RN TRE S ER REE ML
ERAEERERECNEECHBEE-

of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses due to uncertainty of future results.
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11.  LOSS PER SHARE 1. BREBR
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss BRERNEBEDBREAR A L RARER
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company BEANELREEREABZTEERKRZ
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in niEFHBGTE -

issue during the year.

2006 2005
—EEXRE —TTRF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FER FE T
Loss attributable to equity holders AABIERFFE AEGER:
of the Company:
Continuing operations FEREED 9,991 7,822
Discontinued operation BT - 27,850
92,991 35,672
Weighted average number of BT E ARG
ordinary shares in issue 8 (FRR)
(thousands) 606,667 516,048
Basic loss per share (HK$ per share): BREXREER (BRET) :
Continuing operations BHEKEED 0.02 0.02
Discontinued operation BT - 0.05
Total #Et 0.02 0.07
Diluted loss per share amounts are not presented as the HREBEERNENRTEZCERESS
share options outstanding during the years had an anti- R EREIBER R E S E W ER
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share. BEeREERER-
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12. FIXED ASSETS 12. BEIE&EE
Group rEE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Motor
HE &HAEBEE vehicles Total
YEEE HERDE AE wE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET F&T
Cost: DN
At 1 January 2005 R-ZEEREF
—H—H 3,647 24,928 2,570 31,145
Additions NE 250 660 91 1,001
Acquired on acquisition g Ay PNGILS
of subsidiaries PIT 15 B A - 66 - 66
Eliminated on disposal HE—KHEAA
of a subsidiary S E ] (624) (3,137) (244) (4,005)
Disposals HE - (15] = (15)
Written off i 55 (1,716) (1,819) (277) (3,812)
Exchange adjustments b 5 38 B - 68 16 84
At 31 December 2005 RZZEEREF
+=-A=+—H 1,557 20,751 2,156 24,464
Additions NE 347 190 - 537
Acquired on acquisition Uiz B it 128 A &) B
of subsidiaries FiT 5 A AR - 600 - 600
Disposals HE - - (1,015) (1,015)
Written off 1 85 (505) (5,614) = (6,119)
Exchange adjustments b 5 38 B 2 68 26 96
At 31 December 2006 RZTZTRF
+ZRA=+—8 1,401 15,995 1,167 18,563
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12. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12. BEIEEE (&)
Group (continued) KEE (&)
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements  equipment Motor
HE &H-BE vehicles Total
MEHEE HERIZE AE wE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Accumulated depreciation: ~ ZRIEFE:
At 1 January 2005 RZZZTREF
—HA—H 3,529 21,258 1,757 26,544
Provided during the year FRBE 91 1,589 575 2,255
Eliminated on disposal HE — KB A 7l
of a subsidiary 1 85 (624) (1,724) (176) (2,524)
Acquired on acquisition g NEINGLS
of subsidiaries FISRENE - 1 - 1
Disposals & - (11) = (11)
Written off s (1,660) (1,819) (277) (3,756)
Exchange adjustments BE 3, 58 B - 31 8 39
At 31 December 2005 RZZZTREF
+=—A=+—8 1,336 19,325 1,887 22,548
Provided during the year FRBE 174 1,196 150 1,520
Acquired on acquisition S = PNGIES
of subsidiaries G RENE - 42 = 42
Disposals & - - (1,015) (1,015)
Written off 88 (380) (5,588) - (5,968]
Exchange adjustments BE 3 o 2 - 38 19 57
At 31 December 2006 RZZZTREF
+=—A=+—8 1,130 15,013 1,041 17,184
Carrying amounts: RHEME:
At 31 December 2006 RZZETRE
+-B=+—H 271 982 126 1,379
At 31 December 2005 RZZZTREF
+=-B=+—H 221 1,426 269 1,916
Carrying amounts of assets BEAMEETEE
under finance lease: ZEREE
At 31 December 2006 RZZERE
+=-A=+—A8 - - - -
At 31 December 2005 RZZZTREF
+ZA=+—8 - - 8 8
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12. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12. BEE&EE (&)
Company KA
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements  equipment Motor
HE BHHBE vehicles Total
MEHEE RHBERRHE RE M
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FE T FET
Cost: PN ]
1 January 2005 RZZEZRF
—H—H 1,715 1,047 1,295 4,057
Additions NE 189 106 - 295
Written off 1 85 (1,716) - - (1,716)
At 31 December 2005 RZZEZTHF
+=—A=+—H 188 1,153 1,295 2,636
Additions NE - 31 - 31
Disposals HE - - (1,015) (1,015)
Written off i 85 - (101) - (101)
At 31 December 2006 RZETRF
+=-—A=+—H 188 1,083 280 1,551
Accumulated depreciation: RFEHTE
At 1 January 2005 RZZEZRF
—HA—H 1,614 1,015 968 3,597
Provided during the year FREE 78 48 319 445
Eliminated on disposals i & B 3 8 (1,660) - - (1,660)
At 31 December 2005 RZZEZTHF
+-A=+—H” 32 1,063 1,287 2,382
Provided during the year FREE 94 45 8 147
Eliminated on disposals i € BRF i 55 = - (1,015) (1,015)
Written off i 85 - (99) - (99)
At 31 December 2006 RZZEEARF
+-A=+—H” 126 1,009 280 1,415
Carrying amounts: IRE(E:
At 31 December 2006 RZETRF
+=—A=+—H 62 74 - 136
At 31 December 2005 RZZEZTHF
+-A=+—H” 156 90 8 254
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13. BEEE
Group rEHE
Deferred
Computer development
software Goodwill cost Total
BB BE EEMEZME g
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET
Cost: PR ANE :
At 1 January 2005 RZZEZRF
—H—H - - 6,869 6,869
Additions NE - 12,772 - 12,772
Eliminated on disposal & — KM B
of a subsidiary NG - - (2,636) (2,636)
Written off 1 84 - - (4,233) (4,233)
At 31 December 2005 RZZETHEF
+=A=+—-H - 12,772 - 12,772
Accumulated amortisation: REHH:
At 1 January 2005 A\_TERFE—A—H - - 5,482 5,482
Amortisation during FREE
the year = = 811 811
Eliminated on disposal HE — R B
of a subsidiary NGILER - - (2,060) (2,060)
Written off 11 85 - - (4,233) (4,233)
At 31 December 2005 RZETHEF
+-A=+-—"H - - - -
Carrying amounts: REE:
At 31 December 2005 RZZETHEF
+=-A=1+—"H - 12,772 - 12,772
Cost: DENEE
At 1 January 2006 RZELERF
—A—H - 12,772 - 12,772
Additions (Note 31) ANE (HiE31) 1,796 33,033 - 34,829
At 31 December 2006 RZZEEREF
+-B=+—H 1,796 45,805 - 47,601
Accumulated impairment: ZRRRE:
At 1 January 2006 RZELERF
—H—H - - - -
Amortisation during the year & R # 97 = = 97
Exchange difference X = 3 - - 3
At 31 December 2006 RZZEEREF
+=A=+—-H 100 - - 100
Carrying amounts: REE:
At 31 December 2004 RZELERF
+-A=1+—*H 1,696 45,805 - 47,501
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14.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. RMBARZHER
Company
AR T

2006 2005
—EERF —ETRHEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F#ET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LMD R AE 39,631 39,631
Due from subsidiaries N NG] A ) 327,452 328,639
Due to subsidiaries JET BB A Rl 2 318 (2,011) (2,041)
365,072 366,229
Accumulated impairment Z2ERE (265,382) (265,382)
99,690 100,847

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

At the balance sheet date, the Company has interests in

the following principal

Company
A7

Held directly:
HEERE:

Technology Venture

Investments Limited

Held indirectly:
RERE:

Sequent China/
Hong Kong Limited

Technology Venture
(Software] Holdings
Limited

Topasia Computer Limited

BLERERAF
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subsidiaries:

Place of
incorporation/
and operations
EMRIL/
REX£H

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
KBELHES/BH

Hong Kong/
Mainland China
B/ HERNL

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

EBRAMR/BE

Hong Kong/
Mainland China
B5/HEAM

Nominal value of
paid-up share/
registered capital
BERH/
aMERZEE

Ordinary US$1,000
E@AR1,000% T

Ordinary HK$10,000
E@AZ10,0008 T

Ordinary US$1,000
LA 1,000% T

Ordinary HK$10,000
EEMR10,0008 T

MEBARZERDEER 2ERER

sem

JEE K Ef o

o

ey
Bk m

af 2
e

Proportion of
ownership interest

5
R

2006 2005
—gRAE -3TIF
100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

NN

all

RTIEEHEBRA

Principal activities

TRER

Investment holding

REER

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

ARERHBRERR
HR A B B B R 75

Investment holding

REER

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

ARERMBRERR
REE R R
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14.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Company
AF

Held indirectly: (continued)
MERE: (8)

Topsoft Limited
RERNERAH

BEME (LE) BRAT
(Hfeti)

(Topasia Tech (Shanghai)
Limited) (note i)

B SRERE (L8)
BRAE (Hatii)

(Topasia IT Service
(Shanghai) Company
Limited) (note ii]

Acacia Asia Partners
Limited

EEMmABER R
BRAR (KiaFii)

(Acacia Asia Partners
Limited) (note iii)

Place of
incorporation/
and operations
ZMRL/
REXY

Hong Kong
BE

Mainland China
B A3t

Mainland China
B A3t

British Virgin Islands/
Mainland China
RERTAEE/HENK

Mainland China
B A3t

Nominal value of
paid-up share/
registered capital
BRRH/
dMERZEE

Ordinary HK$10,000
LAk 10,000% T

Registered Capital
US$3,800,000
M E A
3,800,000% 7T

Registered Capital
US$1,000,000
AR
1,000,000 7

Ordinary US$1
LERIET

Registered Capital
US$140,000
AT E A
140,000% 7T

14. RMBAT 2R (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest
%E
K& Al
2006 2005
“Z2ERE —ZTIfF

100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities

TRER

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

DHEARRER R
HR A B B e AR 75

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

DHEARRER R
HR A B B B i B 75

Provision of systems
integration and

maintenance services

REARERK R RE RS

Investment holding

REAR

Network technology,
software development
and provision of
technical support services

BERI BHEER
BB R RS
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14.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Company
AF

Held indirectly: (continued)
MERE: (8)

Grand Panorama Limited

LEBAIRERS
BRAR (Hiztiv)

(Conity Investment and
Consultants (Shanghai)
Company Limited]

Place of
incorporation/
and operations
aMERL,/
REXWE

British Virgin Islands/
Mainland China
EBRLES/TENY

Mainland China
B3

Nominal value of
paid-up share/
registered capital
BRRG/
aMERZEE

Ordinary US$10,411
ERRI041ET

Registered Capital
US$140,000
AfER
140,000% 7

[note iv]

Notes:

W R (E8) BR QA (Topasia Tech (Shanghai)
Limited) is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established
by Topasia Computer Limited in Mainland China for a
period of 20 years commencing from the date of issuance
of its business licence on 29 November 2001.

wEE SRR (E8) AR QA (Topasia IT Service
(Shanghai) Company Limited) is a wholly foreign owned
enterprise established by Topasia Computer Limited in
Mainland China for a period of 20 years commencing
from the date of issuance of its business licence on 28
January 2002.

g N ET A8 4% B A BR A A (Acacia Asia Partners
Limited) is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established
by Acacia Asia Partners Limited in Mainland China for a
period of 20 years commencing from the date of issuance
of its business licence on 20 July 2005.

EEBAIKEZANBMR DA (Conity Investment and
Consultants (Shanghail Company Limited) is a wholly
foreign owned enterprise established by Grand Panorama
Limited in Mainland China for a period of 20 years
commencing from the date of issuance of its business
licence on 20 July 2005.
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14. MRMIBATI 2R (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest

2006
ZEBERE

100

EE

1)
g gl

Principal activities
TEXH
2005

—TTHE

- Investment holding

REER

- Provision of real estate
consulting agency

services

Rt EREBHR%

BoRE (L8 BRARAZRIINE
TE HEEEKMERARRFTERA
WA EEHR T E—F+— 8
ZH A AEERRE L AR AR
20 ©

W BRI ERRE (L8) BRAA
RENELE AELEKERAF
R B AR EEHR T =
F—A=-+/N\BREiEREL A HRg
sH A HR2045 -

LB IMETAEE AR AR AR
& 1> % - i Acacia Asia Partners
Limited 7 AR B A0 A 37 48 & B =
ST RAFtA-+tHREERBELA
BB 5T A HA204F -

LEBAKREFZAERRARAREIINE
2% B Grand Panorama Limited#
FEANHAY KEHE T REF
Tt AT BEERRBELBHEGTA
HA204F o
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14.

15.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result e

in particulars of excessive length.

REED R 2B (5)

BERL LRMINARFMER RS
RIBPEAFEXEIBRNAKEE
EFEEABD AR -EERR RHE
HMBRAZHFBRSRBAERIT

GOODWILL PREVIOUSLY TAKEN DIRECTLY TO 15. BAEEBAREZHE
RESERVES
The balances of goodwill presented in the group SEEREPHWMKRT 2NN 2 EELERD
statement of changes in equity are as follows: T
2006 2005
—BEARE —ETREF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET TET
Goodwill acquired in business X% a 0t W
combinations: 2B
At beginning of the year R E 4] - 43,248
Eliminated on disposal of HE— KB AT
a subsidiary: 8
Advanced Digital Technology bR EGRE BRI
Company Ltd (Note 32b(2)) BRAT (K7E320(2)
- (42,646)
Impairment losses: E B
Sequent China/Hong Kong Sequent China,”Hong Kong
Limited Limited - (602)
At end of the year NS - -
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16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 16. AHHERE
2006 2005
—EEXRE —ETRHEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
K i FET FE T
Current assets mENEE
Listed, outside Hong Kong £ FHEEIN (i)
7.48% (2005: 14.96%) in ChinaCast Communication
the share capital of ChinaCast Holdings Limited 7.48%
Communication Holdings Limited —EZRF14.96%) BAK 33,341 66,681
Revaluation surplus transferred BA#ER s EHAR
to equity 21,659 10,228
55,000 76,909
Unlisted, outside Hong Kong SF B0 - FH B RS (i)
20% in the registered capital of 3 7 5 A & B 3 A # il
Beijing Dongshi Shuangwei % A R 2 7] 20%t fii
Education Technology &R
Company Limited 11,591 14,791
66,591 91,700

Notes: BiaE -

i In September 2006, the Group disposed of half of the NR-_TEERENLA AEBREER
14.96% of equity shareholdings in ChinaCast F 5 %&£ & 4 & ChinaCast
Communication Holdings Limited ("ChinaCast’) to a Communication Holdings Limited
director, Mr. Chan Tze Ngon, for a consideration of (TChinaCast ) 14.96%R% A 2% H eh
SGD9,250,000. — X {89,250,0003 JT °

ii. In October 2006, the Group entered into an agreement i RIEBEEZRNF+AH XEEFHRE—F
to dispose of its entire shareholding in Beijing Dongshi B E =7 HEH R R A E R
Shuangwei Education Technology Company Limited to BERMEZEER AT EIARIEST 7
an independent third party for a consideration of KRB AR 12,000,000t 248
RMB12,000,000, payable by 4 installments. X fite

17. INVENTORIES 17. =FE&

Group

rEH
2006 2005
—EERE —EEREF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FE T

Information technology BEEE ZEMBR

products held for resale, at cost B AR 8,857 3,444

Annual Report 2006 £ 3§




Notes to Financial Statements

BT Rk M et

31 December 2006 —EZXF+_-_A=+—H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. BWEZRE
2006 2005
—BRAF “ERHF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET TET
Trade receivables FEU & 5 BR 1A 63,925 70,720
Less: Accumulated impairment R REHRE (41,461) (46,002)
22,464 24,718
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables at the ReEdl R ERESREEZERE S
balance sheet date, net of impairment losses, is as BEIEEEM DT :
follows:
Group
FEE
2006 2005
—BEXRE —EEREF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET TET
Current to 90 days BIER &= 90K 10,430 13,865
91 days to 180 days 1R ZE 180K 2,986 6,994
181 days to 365 days 181 RE 365K 6,540 3,289
Over 365 days 365K A 2,508 570
22,464 24,718
At the balance sheet date, the amount of trade REHB BIRE SRR SHEBERK
receivables includes the balance due from a related —RKAEBERAZ 15652587 (=
company of HK$156,525 (2005: Nil). TTHF:|)-
On average, the Group allows a credit period from one to AREREEZEFPFHET —E1E
six months to its trade customers. AEEH-
M
19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. ENRE -ZER HihEKRK
RECEIVABLES
There is no balance due from related parties included in BAFA R kA EKREERE
the aggregate amount of prepayments, deposits and other AFAEAEREREALTZ&#H (ZF
receivables (2005: HK$335,443). TR 33544378 TL) °
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EERE

B HER A MGrand Panorama Limited
ZIREERMERKBZARMEELRE
WA IR RE REAAE RIE M~ FE
RELEBYETSHHELR S R

20. [IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL 20.
The directors regard the carrying amounts of investment
in and the goodwill arising from the acquisition of Grand
Panorama Limited have not been impaired due to the
profit guarantees given by the vendors and good business
prospect of the Shanghai property market in the medium

term.
21. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 21. BITHEBERRS
Group Company
rED b NNE|
2006 2005 2006 2005
—EEXRF —ZTTHE ZZEERE ZITThHF
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FA&T FET FET
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITES 16,723 52,173 31 30
Pledged time deposits B 1 B 17 K 15,624 139 - =
Other time deposits with BARRIESA
original maturity of more HEa=EAZ
than three months when HiEHEFER
acquired 39,907 - - -
72,254 52,312 31 30
Less: Pledged time deposits  J&l : B ¥ # & #3177 3% (15,624) (139) - =
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 56,630 52,173 31 30

At the balance sheet date, the balance of cash and cash
equivalents denominated in Renminbi was about 90% of
the total balance. Renminbi is not a freely convertible
currency. The bank balances, pledged time deposits, and
the other time deposits carried an average interest rate
of approximately 3.75%.

The time deposits have been pledged to secure general
banking facilities to a group company.
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22. TRADE PAYABLES 22. BENEZRE
Group
rEH
2006 2005
—EEREF —TETREF
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B & FET FET
Trade payables B E SR8 2,011 1,677
Amount due to certain minority B T D ERR 2 RIA
shareholders 325 325
2,336 2,002
The ageing analysis of trade payables as at the balance NeEd g EMNESEEEB DTN
sheet date is as follows: T

Group

rEH
2006 2005
—EEARE —EEREF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FE T
Current to 90 days BNEAZ= 90K 234 -
91 days to 180 days 91 RE 180K 114 160
181 days to 365 days 181 RE 365K 200 8
Over 365 days 365K Ak 1,788 1,834
2,336 2,002

There is no balance due to related parties included in

RSB EBEENAREALZE

the above amounts. £ho

The range of credit period for payments of direct costs

ERERBEEXANKRZEERNTF

of products or services is from one to three months. —z==1@A8-

Venture International Investment Holdings Limited ZEBEBKREZERBR DT




Notes to Financial Statements
ISR R M T

31 December 2006 —EETXF+-_A=+—H

23. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. E:t&ERHMEMNRK
Group Company
r5E PN
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZRRAE _TTHF CZBRAE _TTIHF
Notes HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$'000
ft &t FHET T T FET T T
Accrued expenses BT B R K
and other liabilities ~ Ef & & 59,115 35,525 2,167 4,037
24. BANK OVERDRAFTS 24, BITEX
Group Company
r&5H FAR
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZBEXRE —TTHF ZBEBEXRF —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET TFHET FET FHET
Bank overdrafts repayable ZEREZERKEEZ
on demand: RITHEX:
secured BHEMA - 626 - 598
unsecured f 4K 4 18 - 10 -
18 626 10 598
As the balance sheet date, the Group's banking facilities RNEEH NEBFRTHENUAREF—
were secured by the pledge of a group company’s KE AT ZEBIFEIHS 624, 000,?575(_
time deposits amounting to HK$15,624,000 (2005: TE 413900058 T) {EIK o AN A

HK$139,000).
Company in favour of a bank had been cancelled (2005:
HK$20 million).

Corporate guarantees executed by the

The average effective interest rate of overdrafts was
approximately 17.75%.
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25.

26.

OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

25. WMEMEEARE

Lease in respect of a motor vehicle: —WAECHE:
Group Company
r5H PN
2006 2005 2006 2005
“2EXRE —TTHF ZBEXRE —TThF
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$000
FHET TFET FET TET
Amounts payable: JE A~ FRIA -
Not later than 1 year —F RN - 232 - 232
In the 2nd to 5th years FEZEFREF - 58 - 58
Total minimum finance B EME &K
lease payments e mEE - 290 - 290
Future finance charges ARFEEEH - (36) - (36)
Total obligation under B A M S R
finance lease R - 254 - 254
Classified into amounts DBBARAT
payable: M Sz 5kE:
Not later than 1 year —F RN - 203 - 203
In the 2nd to 5th years FEZEERF - 51 - 51
- 254 - 254
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 26, EEHEEE
2006 2005
—EEXRE —TTRF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FER FE T
At beginning of the year R E 4] 159 233
Written off to income B amx (Aati10)
statement (Note 10) (159) (74)
At end of the year NS - 159

The Group's deferred tax represented liabilities arising

from accelerated depreciation allowances.

ZBfE.

AEBEZRENBAREREMENELS
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BAE
2006 2005
—EEXRE —ETRHEF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FE T
Authorised: JEERRAK -
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares 1,000,000,0008% & i& M &

of HK$0.10 each 0.10/ 7T 2 &k 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEZETRHERKAE:

674,998,552 ordinary shares 674,998,552/% & IR H 1E0.10%5 7T

of HK$0.10 each ZEBRAR(Z2ZL%F:

(2005: 557,351,493 shares) 557,351,4930% ) 67,500 55,735
During the year, 117,647,059 ordinary shares of the FRN - MBLPE =7 ETERR A
Company were issued at an issue price of HK$0.102 per 117,647,059 0% & AR - AT EFARO0.1
share to independent third parties for part of the 7 Jrc #E B W B Grand Panorama
consideration of HK$30,000,000 for acquisition of 100% Limited 100%H% 7= # % 1X. {8 30,000,000
equity interest in Grand Panorama Limited. BT 2 B AR e
A summary of the movements of the Company’s issued RRRBEETEBARARA 2 E Zp#E a0
ordinary share capital is as follows: T

Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
ERTROKE BRITRA R4 R ER @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FAET FAET
At 1 January 2005 RZEERFE—F—H 502,729,644 50,273 341,274 391,547
Issue of consideration shares (TR BRI 54,621,849 5,462 1,038 6,500
At 31 December 2005 RZETHF
and 1 January 2006 +=ZA=+— &
“EE E¥-R—H 557,351,493 55,735 342,312 398,047
Issue of consideration shares BIIRBRH 117,647,059 11,765 235 12,000
At 31 December 2006 RZETRF
+ZRA=+—H 674,998,552 67,500 342,547 410,047
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28.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company's current share option scheme (the
“Scheme") was adopted by the shareholders on 30 May
2002 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors, employees and persons providing services to
the Group. It will expire on 29 May 2012. Under the
Scheme, the Board may grant options to eligible
employees, including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, suppliers and service providers to subscribe
for shares in the Company.

At the balance sheet date, the number of shares options
granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme was
53,860,000 (2005: 9,365,000), representing 7.98% (2005:
1.68%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’'s shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted to any individual in any one
year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company's shareholders. Options
granted to substantial shareholders and independent
non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the
Company's share capital or with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company's shareholders.

HK$1.00 is payable on each grant. Options may be
exercised at any time from the date of grant of the share
option during the Option Period ending on 29 May 2012.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company's shares on the offer date
of the options; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's shares.

28.

BROARKRS
RNAEIREERETE ([ZEHE]) R
—EE_FA AT HERERN £
EEEMES BEERRBASEEZA
TR ER R —E——FER A=+
NEER - BRIEZTE EFCAHEE
HBEE (BEARARENHBARE
F) MR KRR A R R R AR
AR R ARG -

REE R BIBFZTEEE RDRITE
2 B R #E 453,860,000/ (— B F 4
9,365,0001%)  HERE BARR A B &T
D 27.98% (ZFEZEREF: 1.68%) oI
RAGIBRRIGEE U EZBRT B
Bazsr B r aE % B 2 AR AR AT S R AR 15
BE NERNKEASBEERQRE R
1TREAD10% © HAZNA B PR 3R I 48 == JE BE e
ZAEW R AR — & A R E R A £
ERERAERHZBREMSRELR
BERTZROHEE RERNERTSE
BBARTRMD Z21% ° [[AEBRE KRB
MIEHTESR L BEARBRA0.1%
(B {E R %15,000,000/8 T 2 B A% # - 78
E o NN ) R -

AREREH 2 BERES1.0087T 8
BT HBREROERREE T ——
FRAZTNA IERBRE R ARERTT
EATEERRRAREFTEE  TEIR
AT®EE: (BRERZBHARA
Beip e & (I REIRL2 A HE 0 EE
% B dn F YT (E ¢ e liii) AN 2 = B
(G
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 28.
(continued)
Details of share options outstanding at the balance sheet
date, which are all of a call option type, are as follows:

Date of grant Exercise period

R A # TR

21 January 2000 From date of grant to 20 January 2010
—EZTFE-H-+—H mEHARZE_T—FTF—F_-+H
27 November 2003 From date of grant to 29 May 2012
ZEE=Ft+—AZt++tH HREAPE-Z-—-FHAA-t+NH
16 August 2006 From date of grant to 29 May 2012
ZEERFNATAA MELASE-_S——FAA=-1+NH
29 November 2006 From date of grant to 29 May 2012

“EERFT-—A-+NAH HBRLEAHE-_T-——"FHH_+NH

In accordance with the terms of the share-based
arrangement, options issued vest at the date of grant.

The fair value of the share options granted during the
financial year is HK$0.05674. The fair value of those
granted in 2003 was estimated by the directors. Options
were priced using the Black-Scholes-Merton Option
Pricing Model. Expected volatility is based on extracts
from the Bloomberg's information based on 400 trading
days (around 1.5 years).

Inputs into the model
mE XA 2 B g
Weighted average share price
InHE 35 B (8
Exercise price

7B

Expected volatility

8 5 R 1@

Expected option period
T8 B B A B A
Dividend yield

i B &

Risk-free interest rate
£ [ f 7

Option type
BRERR

The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimate. The value of an option varies with different

variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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RGNS (#)
E/\\\

CH=| *%ﬂ%%%wbﬁﬁﬁﬂiézﬁﬁﬁﬂé
LINN

4
2=}
‘i
B

Fair value
Exercise price at grant date

1B REBHZATE

HK$2.532 [Note)
2.5325 7T (Ktiz)
HK$0.233 HK$0.05674
0.2337% 7T 0.0567438 7T
HK$0.100 HK$0.05674
0.1007 7T 0.0567438 7T
HK$0.150 HK$0.05674
0.1507% 7T 0.056743 7T

RBRD 2 HF G B BT B RERER
HEMRE

REBEEMRHEREZAFER
005674 TL-R_ZEZE=F I HERK
Bz AFERESHE-BRERANA
Nwm—aFRET] e EEXEE - TEH
BB B BIE400ER 5 B (GL1.5%F)
TEZEIEER-

2006
—EEXRE
HK$0.138
0.1387% 7T
HK$0.100/0.150
0.100/0.150% 7T
90.39%

90.39%

1.5 years

1.5%

0%

0%

3.642%

3.642%

Call

7 A

STEBREATEMRAZHERRBR
RREZREHERE -BREBEERE
EETEEBRRZTAZHNE-
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28.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

28.

Movements of the Company's share options held by

employees, directors and business associates during the

year are:
At
1 January
2006
Grantee RZBERE
REA -f-H
Directors
B2
Mr. Tai Benedict -
HUErE

Mr. Fu Yan Yan -
BRmEE

Ms. Wang Xi Ling -
IFRLL

Other employees

RfER
In aggregate 8,045,000

N2

Number of share options
BREHE

At
Granted Lapsed 31 December
during during 2006
year theyear R=ZBAE
ERRY Em%H tZA=t-8
400,000 - 600,000
600,000 - 600,000
600,000 - 600,000

(5,105,000) 2,940,000

- 8,000,000 - 8,000,000
Sub-total
NG 8,045,000 9,800,000 (5,105,000 12,740,000

Date of grant

RLAH

29 November 2006
ZEE5E

t-A=thH

29 November 2006
ZEE5E

+-B=thE

29 November 2006
ZEE5E

t-A=-thA

27 November 2003
“E3zF

+-B=t+H

29 November 2006
S N2
t-A-thH

B 43 =R R

2 (#)

FRN EBE BEEREBEHMBAAR
EhEgzgesHmT:

Share price of
the Company
at grant date

REH
BR&LE
BB ER

HK$0.153
0.153% 1T

HK$0.153
0.153% 7T

HK$0.153
0.153% 7T

HK$0.23
0237

HK$0.193
0.153% 1T

Exercise
price

i@

HK$0.150
0.150% 7T

HK$0.150
0.150% 7T

HK$0.150
0.150% 7T

HK$0.233
023387

HK$0.150
0.150% 7T

Exercise period
of share options
BREL
(i:d:]

29 Novemnber 2006
to 29 May 2012
ZEERE
t-A-fhA
E_3-CF

EA-tAR

29 November 2006
to 29 May 2012
ZEERE
t-A-thR
E_3-CF

EA-tAR

29 November 2006
to 29 May 2012
ZEINE
t-A-thR
E_Z-CF

il i B!

27 Novemnber 2003

to 29 May 2012
“EE=

t-AoteE
ERF

EA-tAR

29 Novernber 2006
to 29 May 2012
ZEERE
t-A-fhA
E_3-CF

EA-tAE
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28. KRR

Share price of

the Company

at grant date

RE

Dateofgrant ~ AHAAT

REAH  ZRGER

21 January 2000 HK$3.175

2 3AT5E T
-RB=1-H

19 August 2006 HK$0.093

EIRE 0.093%
NAThHE

29 November 2006 HK$0.153

I 2 0.153% T
t-A=thHA

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
Number of share options
BREHE
At At
1 January Granted Lapsed 31 December
2006 during during 2006
Grantee R-BERE year theyear R-ZFARE
BERA -B-H ERRA EREN t=A=t-8
Business Associates
FBBEAL
In aggregate 1,320,000 - - 1,320,000
L3
- 6,600,000 - 6,600,000
- 33,200,000 - 33,200,000
Sub-total
It 1,320,000 39,800,000 - 41,120,000
Total
A% 9,365,000 49,600,000 (5,105,000) 53,860,000
Note: The fair value of the options granted under the previous

scheme has not been estimated as the directors believe
that the likelihood of the exercise of the right is remote

in view of the high value of the exercise price of such

options relative to the current market price of the

Company’s shares.
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A

/I

2 (&)

Exercise
price

ik

HK$2.532

1530% T

HK$0.100
0.100%7

HK$0.150
0.150% 7

Exercise
period of
share options
BREL
fig:dd

21 January 2001
to 20 January
2010
“E%3-F
—AZt-A
EIZ-%E

—A=1H

19 August 2006

to 29 May 2012
“234E

<%/

NATNRE
“E-CF
AB=thA

29 November 2006
to 29 May 2012
S N2
t-B=thA
E_E-CF

EA-tNE

Hrat: ERRBBERBIME L EREZT
EEBEEANESRARBARMETH
B EBFRETERREATREIETA
M EEEERFEe
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29. RESERVES 29. f#&
(al  GROUP (a) #&H

The amounts of the Group's consolidated reserves REBZGEEHEBEEBEREE
and the movements therein are presented in the 2R AEE LGS ERE BN
consolidated statement of changes in equity. o

The contributed surplus of the Group represents REBZHABRERE NN
the difference between the nominal value of the NEHETT 2 & B B 48 P U
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant AAEIZBRAEEBEEARBER/R
to a group re-organisation in 1999 over the BREBETZRAMEMNZERE.

nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange.

All components of equity other than retained T%*J(%FEETE)MWZFWE
earnings (accumulated losses) are not available Eam oD NEAERRS IR

—»o—

for distribution to shareholders.

(b)  COMPANY (b)  ARQH
Share
premium Contributed  Share options  Accumulated
account surplus reserve losses Total
R4 5B & PN BRERE ZRER g
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FAL FAET FAET FAL FAET
t 1 January 2005 RZZEHE
—A—-H 341,274 39,431 - (326,741) 53,964
Issue of consideration ~ E{TREBR{H
shares Note 27) (Kiat27) 1,038 - - - 1,038
Net loss for the year ~ AFEEFER - - - (13,980) (13,980)
At 31 December 2005 R-ZEHE
and 1 January 2006 +-A=+
—AK=E%
~NE—A—H 342,312 39,431 - (340,721) 41,022
ssue of consideration  E{TREBR{H
shares (Note 27) (Friz27) 235 - - - 235
Grant of share options 1% it} Bk 4 - - 1,505 = 1,505
Net loss for the year ~ AFEFER - - - (12,014) (12,014)
At 31 December 2006  RZ-EZTARF
+=R
=t+-H 342,547 39,431 1,505 (352,735) 30,748
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29. RESERVES (continued) 29.

(b) COMPANY (continued)
The net loss from ordinary activities attributable
to shareholders of the Company dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company was
HK$12,014,000 (2005: HK$13,980,000].

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the excess of the combined net asset
value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
same reorganisation as mentioned in note 29(a)
above, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s
contributed surplus is undistributable.

ARG D)

(b)

RATF (&)
RARAHBEHRKREEZ AR T
BRREEGECHEXEBFEER
12,014,000 L (Z 2T A F:
13,980,000/ 7T) °

ARBZBAREREW EXHE
29(a) Fir 2 AR 3% [R] — 5 4 i S P Bl
BRARAMHEEREBLARQT
ERRBEETZROEENS
B REBARE-NN—FAH
EARARBZEABRER TG
7K °

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 30. #EHEeREBRKHE
STATEMENT
Movement in working capital BEES®E 2006 2005
—EEXRE —ETRF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
(Increase) Decrease in F& (8Emn) R (5,413) 13,036
inventories
Decrease in trade receivables W E 5 R TE R A 3,274 3,368
Increase in prepayments, TBRRIE mE RHE A
deposits and other receivables JrE W SR 32 0 (3,472) (7,831)
Increase [Decrease) in trade e E SERIEE N OF )
payables 334 (11,781)
Increase (Decrease) in accrued EEtBEREA
liabilities and other payables FEAHERIE o ORl 4) 19,742 (25,053)
14,465 (28,261
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31. ACAQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 31.
In August 2006, the Group acquired 100% of the share
capital of Grand Panorama Limited ("GP") which in turn
holds 100% of LB EAIHK &EF BB R A Al (Conity
Investment and Consultants (Shanghail Company

Limited). The relevant information about the acquisition

is as follows:

WE—XKER A
RZZEZNENA RNEEKHEGCrand
Panorama Limited ([GP]) 100%M% 7 -
MZARFAE LEBAIKREZHAERA
7] 100%4 53 ° A B8 72 JH U iE 2 48 B &k
R

2006 2005
ZEBRE —ZTRE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
(a) Detail of net liabilities (assets) (a) FTkEEEFE (BE
acquired and goodwill: FE) REBFE:
Total purchase consideration BUERE
discharged by: PATRS 77 R A
Cash & 18,000 6,500
Fair value of the 117,647,059 ARBREAMTE
shares of the Company 17 2117,647,0598%
issued based on published AN ]
market price 12,000 6,500
Total consideration of WEaRE
the acquisition 30,000 13,000
Transaction costs RHA 1,662 187
31,662 13,187
Add: Fair value of net (assets) W T XFIRFT e (B EHE)
liabilities acquired shown BEFELATE 1,371 (187)
below
Loan acquired FT 4 B8 B 3K - (228)
Goodwill (Note 13] AE (Mit13) 33,033 12,772

The factors that contribute to the recognition of the

goodwill include profit guarantees made by the vendors

of GP and potential for growth in the property market in

Mainland China.

BREE 2 REBEGCPE K 1 & F R
ERTEAMYETN S 2 ERES -
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31. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 3. WR-—XKEAF &)
(b)  The net liabilities of GP on the date of acquisitions (b) RZTZERFNRKEBE GP
in August 2006 were as follows: ZEBEFENT:
Acquiree’s
carrying amount
Fair value BUEAR
ATE ZEHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Assets gE
Equipment i 559 559
Other intangible assets HthmPEE 234 234
Trade receivables W B 5 fR1E 1,020 1,020
Other current assets HithmE & E 641 641
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 23 23
2,477 2,477
Liabilities ki
Amount due to related companies A BE A R 508 1,940 1,940
Other payables H A JE 15 5K 1,908 1,908
3,848 3,848
Net liabilities acquired PR & B %58 (1,371) (1,371)
(c) Purchase consideration (c) YR E 30,000 =
Less: Amount satisfied by the AR R BB D AT
Company's shares Z A (12,000) -
Purchase consideration paid in cash AR & 2 T (B 18,000 =
Add: Transaction costs n: R 5 KA 1,662 =
Less: Cash and cash equivalents WTERB R R 2
in the subsidiary acquired RekBReEEY (23) =
Net cash outflow on acquisition WS 2 R %5 19,639 =
GP contributed HK$2,789,000 and HK$2,847,000 to the CPRUKBEMEAERANRGEAKEZ
Group's revenue and loss respectively for the period AR EE D R A2,789,0008 T &
between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet 2,847,000/ JT ©
date.
If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2006, WM EER T RE—H BT
total group revenue for the year would have been FAKE AU AL 7% 64,833,00078 7T
approximately HK$64,833,000 and loss for the year would i 6 A E5 18 18 49 413,588,000/ 7T - 5% &
have been approximately HK$13,588,000. These pro forma HEEREHDABRE T —ERAIBAR
information are for illustrative purposes only and are not MBBERN T FEF—H —HZK"
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of the AREEBEBRER ZWARES T TEE
Group that actually would have been achieved had the TRRI AR R ZEAE -

acquisition been completed on 1 January 2006, nor are
they a projection of future results.
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32. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 32. HE—ZXHEQT
2006 2005
—EEXRE “ETRE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
(a) Cash flow information: (a) BeRBEER:
Disposal consideration: HERE:
Cash received B - 24,977
Direct costs relating BEALEZ
to the disposal HEEKA - (602]
- 24,375
Amount of cash and FIHEMBARZ
cash equivalents of the RekBeEEY
subsidiary disposed of ok - (21,052)
Net cash received BEHREFE - 3,323
Amount of non-cash net FTHEFREEESFE
assets (liabilities) (BEFH) 28
disposed of:
Non-current assets FREBEE - 2,160
Current assets MEEE - 77,459
Current liabilities nEAR - (78,114)
- 1,505
(b) Loss for the year from (b) CRILEBREEEFSE:
discontinued operation:
Post-tax loss from operation EBEEZRBEER - 5,637
Loss on disposal of the HEBRIEEBZER
discontinued operation - 22,213
- 27,850
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32. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 32. HE-—ZXHNELQF (5)
(b(1)) Analysis of result of the discontinued operation (b(1)) ERILEXRFRNEED N
during the year:

2006 2005
—RERARE “ETAF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE T

Revenue: WA
Sales of goods HEEm - 70,468

Rendering of computer 1R it 5 B B, 1l R 75

technology services - 25,756
- 96,224
Cost of sales 8 & B A - (87,999)
Gross profit EA - 8,225
Other income Hh i zn - 47
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER - (3,378)
Administrative expenses TREHR - (8,707)
Other operating expenses Hing e &M - (811)
Loss from operating activities REEBER - (4,624)
Finance costs A& A - (273)
Loss before tax B Bl Al 1B - (4,897
Income tax expense P15 5 5 < - (740)
- (5,637]
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32. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 32. HE—ZXHEBLAR (&)

(b(2)) Loss on disposal of the discontinued operation:

(c)

(b(2)) HEEBRIEXB ZERE:

2006 2005
ZEEXRF “TTRE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Sale proceeds & P15 A - 24,977
Waiver by the buyer of an BEA#RAEEEMNKIEA
amount due by the Group - 18,615
- 43,592
Less:Net asset value W RERE - (22,557)
Goodwill at the date of RBEE R IEE
purchase of the discontinued BBz EE (Kat15)

operation (Note 15) - (42,646)
Transaction costs RHHKA - (602)
- (22,213)

Net cash flow of the discontinued operation: () BALERCBEESREFE:
2006 2005
—ZEEXREF —ETRE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FBT
Operating activities REET - (14,150)
Investing activities REEE - (749)
Financing activities MEEE - 360
- (14,539)
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33. COMMITMENTS 33:

The Group leases certain of its office premises and
property agency branches under operating lease
arrangements. The leases are negotiated for terms
ranging from half to two and half years. The terms of the
leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodical rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of land and buildings falling
due as follows:

i
AEBERBLEHERHFHERETE
FEMENMMEREST-MERRSG
ERFFEMEFIF - HEMRKR K
ZRBEXNFRBES AREAREE
B ERAEEE-

REER BREERLHEET Z2TH
B EHE  AEBEENLT HHE 5
WARKEHRSAENT:

Group
N L
2006 2005
—EEREF —ETREF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Within one year —F A 793 1,046
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FZEFREF
(BEEMEREER) 377 837
1,170 1,883

Save as aforesaid, the Company and the Group did not

have any other significant commitments.

B bl 35 51 AR R) R AR S A A A
HAERAGE-

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 4. HAREE
Company and Group AERAFRAEHE
2006 2005
—EEREF —EEREF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Guarantees given by the Company to RARBETET
banks in connection with banking MEARZRITREE
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries % TR 1T 2 ER - 20,000
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35:

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35.
Ownership of the company’s shares is widely held. The
directors consider Venture International Investment
Holdings Limited (incorporated in Bermuda) to be the
ultimate parent of the Group.

(A) The following transactions were carried out with
related parties:

FHEALXRS

ARBIBRDZBEAERZ T ALRE
EERAR NAREAMALZEZER
RERERBRBERARAR/AKEREER

o

(A) HEEBEALETZRFEAT:

2006 2005
ZEBEXREF —EEREF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FAET
(i)  Rendering of services i) RHERS
(a) Management services to () M—KPERAHE
an unlisted company HEWHIRE DA
classified as an ZIEETRF]
available-for-sale REEERHB
investee company 312 309
(b) Provision of management (b) HEEMER—F
services of two directors 8- NG|
to an investee company MAEFRM
for reimbursement of EERHB
their remuneration - 567
The service charge is based on BER%E R
market rate. BB ERTE
lii)  Purchases from a related i) B—REBREARKE
company
Maintenance and consultancy — X\ BESE
services provided by a ZARIFMRHERE
company controlled KB R R%
by a director - 221
The service charge is based on EHR%E R
market rate. RS ERTE
(iii) Proceeds from sale of shares m-HEEHETM
in an available-for-sale HERERBRE
investment to a director 45,323 -
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35. BEREALIREG (&)
(A) (continued) (A) (5B)
2006 2005
—EEARF —ETRF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FAET

(iv) Key management compensation  (iii) TEEEASHE

Salaries and other short-term FeREMEHESR
employee benefits & A 8,801 6,636
Share-based payments AR 17 1 5% 102 -
(B) Amounts of outstanding balances due by (due (B) U (B UTEBEALZH
to) the following related parties: REBREH:

(i) Arising from sales of good/services (i} REHEER RS

An unlisted company classified —ROBRAHHE

as an available-for-sale WIRBERR 23

investee company FHAAR 156 156

(i) In the form of current accounts il AEEREHA

A significant investee group —REAHERERA - (402)
An investee company classified —ROBRAHHE

as an available-for-sale BWIRBE DR 2 WHE

investee company NG| - 265
A company of which a director —RARA—RES

of the Company is a director REEZZ N7 - 70

Notes: BiaE -

(a) The directors of the Company consider that the related (a) ARNRIEERE SBET AR TE
party transactions by group companies were made on TEBEATR IR — B EER
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary course of NEBEKRET
business.

(b) The balances are unsecured and without a fixed term of (b) AR AEIK N ERT B
repayment.
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36.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Placing of new shares

On 22 January 2007, the Company entered into an
agreement to place 110,000,000 new shares to six
placees at a placing price of HK$0.22 per share.
The net proceeds from the placing received by
the Company of approximately HK$23,500,000 was
applied towards the Company’s general working
capital.

Acquisition of Huge Value Development Ltd.

On 12 February 2007, Technology Venture
Investments Limited ("TVI”], a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement to acquire 100% in the issued share
capital of Huge Value Development Ltd. at a total
consideration of HK$78,000,000. Huge Value
Development Ltd. is engaged in the provision of
management and consultancy services for the
cultivation of licorice roots in Inner Mongolia.

Extension of time for fulfillment of profit guarantee
On 22 February 2007, the shareholders approved
a supplemental agreement entered into between
TVI and vendors of the entire equity interest in
Grand Panorama Limited to extend the time for
fulfillment of the Profits Guarantee of
RMB4,000,000 (approximately HK$4,000,000] and
RMB6,000,000 (approximately HK$6,000,000) from
the two years ending 31 December 2006 and 2007
to the two years ending 31 December 2007 and
2008 respectively.

Disposal of investment in ChinaCast Education
Corporation

On 8 January 2007, TVI disposed of all of the
33,037,221 shares it owned in the capital of
ChinaCast Communication Holdings Limited in
exchange for 1,551,771 shares in the capital of
ChinaCast Education Corporation (formerly known
as Great Wall Acquisition Corporation], the shares
of which are quoted on the NASDAQ over-the-
counter ("OTC") Bulletin Board in the United States
of America.

On 29 March 2007, TVI entered into an agreement
to dispose of the said 1,551,771 shares for a
consideration of HK$55,000,000 to an independent
third party.

36.

REBRRER

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

i £ 5 IR

RZZETEELF-—HZ+ZH 'K
RAFI @ EEEEER
0.22/ 7t B2 £ 110,000,000% #7
B FRBERREA-AREEE
FT 1S 5/ 1B )F B8 49 423,500,000
T ERAERRAE —REEED-

Y B8 Huge Value Development
Ltd.

RZBEELF_A+=—RH AR
a2 & M B 2 7 Technology
Venture Investments Limited
(ITVI) BTS2 e AR (B
78,000,000 T Y B Huge Value
Development Ltd. 2 & 2 17 %
A e Huge Value Development
Ltd.4¢ S 4 (it & 32 I 8 9 AR 755 DA
ERASROEEEE:

3 3B E BU% A 4R 3% HA PR
RZZETZ+F_A=-+=-H 'K
RH#LETVIE Grand Panorama
Limited® FS AR A #E &5 2 B 5 AT
IR E A E SR
AR EARME 4,0000005T
(#4,000,000 T) X A R
6,000,0007T (#%96,000,0007% 7T )
ZHBRAFBHEEZEZE TR
—ERLEF T A=1+—HIM™
EFEECEEHE_TTLtFR
—EENFFTA=1+—HIMW
&&= -

i £ A ChinaCast Education
CorporationZ R &
RZZEZELF—-—A\B TVIEE
E 7 ChinaCast Communication
Holdings Limited iR AR B 2
#833,037,2210% A& 15 - A &2 #2
ChinaCast Education Corporation
(B0 8 Great Wall Acquisition
Corporation) & 2K A 1,551, 771/%
f% ¥ o ChinaCast Education
Corporationfi% 2 74 3 B 4 H 3= 7%
BN G ERRE-

R-_ZEZTL+F=F=_+AHAHB TV
213 17 7% + 55,000,000/ T K (B
m—Z2BILE=ZHEE Ll
1,551, 77 1B B 17
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